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2025
200,841,627 100.13
252,901 0.13
200,588,726
100.00
29,470
2025

- 35,110,451

9.40 330,184,341 5.72 200,841,627 100.13

2025

FNMA UMBS 06.00, TBA, 9/25/55

FNMA UMBS 05.50 TBA, 9/25/55

GNMA 11, Single-family, 30 Year, 05.50, 9/15/55

GNMA 11, Single-family, 30 Year 05.00, 9/15/55

FNMA UMBS 02.50, TBA, 9/25/55

FHLMC STACR Debt Notes, 2016-DNA1, B, FRN, 14.4630 7/25/28

FNMA UMBS 05.50, TBA, 9/25/55

FNMA Connecticut Avenue Securities Trust, 2016-C02, 1B, FRN, 16.7130 9/25/28

FNMA Connecticut Avenue Securities Trust, 2016-C03, 1B, FRN, 16.2130 10/25/28

10

GNMA 11, Single-family, 30 Year 04.50 9/15/55

2025

2025

2025

24.50
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2025
11 6.64 976
587,539 86,321
(2016 ) 6.72 987
12 6.88 1,011
561,947 82,561
(2017 ) 6.97 1,024
13 6.94 1,020
508,057 74,644
2018 7.03 1,033
14 6.58 967
467,247 68,648
2019 6.68 981
15 5.90 867
439,560 64,580
2020 5.99 880
16 6.32 929
471,093 69,213
2021 6.42 943
17 5.64 829
340,195 49,981
2022 5.73 842
18 5.26 773
249,863 36,710
2023 5.35 786
19 5.23 768
210,985 30,998
2024 5.34 785
20 5.50 808
200,528 29,462
2025 5.62 826
5.51 810
2024 211,077 31,011
5.63 827
5.40 793
10 205,099 30,133
5.52 811
5.46 802
11 205,813 30,238
5.57 818
5.39 792
12 201,697 29,633
5.50 808
5.41 795
2025 200,759 29,496
5.53 812
5.47 804
201,918 29,666
5.59 821
5.47 804
200,179 29,410
5.58 820
5.50 808
200,528 29,462
5.62 826
5.51 810
199,925 29,373
5.63 827
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11 0.408 59.94

2015 2016 30 0.360 52.89
12 0.408 59.94

2016 2017 30 0.360 52.89
13 0.408 59.94

2017 2018 30 0.360 52.89
14 0.404 59.36

2018 2019 30 0.357 52.45
15 0.348 51.13

2019 2020 30 0.312 45.84
16 0.258 37.91

2020 2021 30 0.222 32.62
17 0.240 35.26

2021 2022 30 0.204 29.97
18 0.240 35.26

2022 2023 30 0.204 29.97
19 0.240 35.26

2023 2024 30 0.204 29.97
20 0.240 35.26

2024 2025 30 0.204 29.97
2024 0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

10 0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

1 0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

19 0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

2075 0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

0.020 2.94

0.017 2.50

53/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
ooooodoooiooooooodod

0.020 2.94
0.017 2.50
0.020 2.94
0.017 2.50
0.020 2.94
0.017 2.50
11 2015 2016 30 6.26 6.70
12 2016 2017 30 10.08 9.34
13 2017 2018 30 7.03 6.20
14 2018 2019 30 0.72 0.16
15 2019 2020 30 5.43 6.02
16 2020 2021 30 11.67 11.02
17 2021 2022 30 7.04 7.65
18 2022 2023 30 2.49 3.09
19 2023 2024 30 4.11 3.72
20 2024 2025 30 9.93 9.20
IR et ]
- - 3 ENA)

NAV

NAV 1
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11
2015 6,530 60,100 457,250
(6,530) (60,100) (457,250)
2016 30
12
206 3,990 37,850 423,390
(3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
2017 30
13
2017 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
o8 0 (3,132,640) (168, 260) (3,387,770)
14
2018 6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
2015 0 (6,954,910) (307,260) (10,035, 420)
15
2019 9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
200 0 (9,931,980) (1,040,690) (18,926,710)
16
2020 9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
o1 0 (9,154,250) (3,587,690) (24,493,270)
17
oz 1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
o0 0 (1,361,070) (5,880,780) (19,973,560)
18
022 548,870 6,909,440 13,612,990
o3 0 (548,870) (6,909,440) (13,612,990)
19
2023 174,980 2,077,955 11,710,015
.y - (174,980) (2,077,955) (11,710,015)
20
2024 219,610 1,239,398 10,690,227
s 0 (219,610) (1,239,398) (10,690,227)
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11
2015 8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
Y016 “ (8,210,370) (76,323,921) (87,014,635)
12
06 7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
017 " (7,588,070) (14,399,919) (80,202, 786)
13
2017 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
018 - (4,407,620) (15,701,116) (68,909, 290)
14
018 0 8,861,870 60,047,420
©) (8,861,870) (60,047,420)
2019 30
15
2019 0 5,285,895 54,761,525
2020 0 ©) (5.285,895) (54,761,525)
16
2020 0 5,520,480 49,241,045
©) (5,520,480) (49,241,045)
2021 30
17
o 0 9,556,560 39,684,485
202 0 ) (9,556,560) (39,684,485)
18
2022 0 6,385, 355 33,299,130
©) (6,385, 355) (33,299, 130)
2023 30
19
(2023 0 5,238,745 28,060,385
©) (5,238,745) (28,060, 385)
2024 30
20
2024 0 2,852,946 25,207,439
o2 0 ©) (2,852,946) (25,207,439)
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2025 30 2024 30

) 3,4,8,11 233,039,733 34,238,198 265,743,138 39,042,982
8 5,772,737 848,131 17,774,399 2,611,415

8,9 71,750 10,542
4,8 104,384 15,336

4,8 131,703 19,350
2,075,368 304,913 1,798,646 264,257
3,8 10,820,912 1,589,808 25,479,123 3,743,393
4 3,100,292 455,495 3,903,548 573,509
255,012,495 37,466,436 314,803,238 46,250,892
) 3,4,8,11 10,135,841 1,489,158 26,032,401 3,824,680
8,10 41,057,000 6,032,094 73,892,650 10,856,308
6 159,106 23,376 189,719 27,874

4,8 28,290 4,156
4,8 253,213 37,202
8,9 233,068 34,242 639,703 93,985
8,9 78,242 11,495 96,039 14,110
8 2,290,684 336,547 2,380,968 349,812
4 13,834 2,032 13,504 1,984
8,9 558,861 82,108 382,793 56,240
54,554,926 8,015,210 103,880,990 15,262,195

#
1,8 200,457,569 29,451,226 210,922,248 30,988,697
200,527,865 29,461,554 210,985,427 30,997,979
*
#
2024 30 2025 30
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2025 30 2024 30
14,125,961 2,075,386 11,056,509 1,624,422
45,891 6,742 16,778 2,465
7,972,679 1,171,346 524,257 77,024
22,144,531 3,253,474 11,597,544 1,703,911
9 2,935,493 431,283 3,274,971 481,159
9 72,260 10,616 96,896 14,236
9 61,446 9,028 50,519 7,422
9 376,943 55,380 377,344 55,439
9 64,113 9,419 68,356 10,043
9 99,678 14,645 96,865 14,231
9 110,353 16,213 88,033 12,934
9 (372,472) (54,724) (319, 255) (46,905)
3,347,814 491,861 3,733,729 548,559
18,796,717 2,761,614 7,863,815 1,155,352
(8,059,932) (1,184,165) (9,305,157) (1,367,114)
10,736,785 1,577,448 (1,441,342) (211,762)
10,736,785 1,577,448 (1,441,342) (211,762)
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2024 30

1,8

210,922,248 30,988,697 249,828,271 36,704,770
10,736,785 1,577,448 (1,441,342) (211,762)
1,191,116 174,999 910,535 133,776
(15,694, 339) (2.,305,812) (27,596,796) (4,054,521)
(6,698,241) (984,106) (10,778,420) (1,583,565)
(21,201,464) (3.114,919) (37,464,681) (5,504,311)
200,457,569 29,451,226 210,922,248 30,988,697

771262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 30 2024 30

10,736,785 1,577,448 (1,441,342) (211,762)

3 (15,513,096) (2,279,184) (11,410,097) (1,676,371)

7 8,059,932 1,184,165 9,305,157 1,367,114

1,387,135 203,798 353,588 51,949

(45,891) (6,742) (16,778) (2,465)

4,624,865 679,485 (3,209,472) (471,536)

8 12,001,662 1,763,284 100,777,319 14,806,204

8,10 (32,835, 650) (4,824,214)  (210,614,809)  (30,943,528)

4,8 104,384 15,336 (104,384) (15,336)

4,8 (131,703) (19, 350) 270,463 39,736

4 803,256 118,014 (3,903,548) (573,509)
8,9 (71,750) (10,542)

8,9 (17,797) (2,615) (78,275) (11,500)

4,8 28,290 4,156 (62,437) (9,173)

4,8 (253,213) (37,202) 253,213 37,202

4 330 48 13,504 1,984

8,9 (406,635) (59,743) 408,883 60,073

8 (90, 284) (13,265) (637,564) (93,671)

8,9 176,068 25,868 32,243 4,737

3,4,8,11 32,703,405 4,804,784 270,414,401 39,729,284

3,4,8,11 (15,896,560) (2,335,523) _ (103,968,920) _ (15,275,114)

738,668 108,525 49,590,617 7,285,853

13,849,239 2,034,730 14,352,853 2,108,721

14,587,907 2,143,255 63,943,470 9,394,575

7 (8.059,932) (1.184,165) (9,305,157) (1.367,114)

6 1,191,116 174,999 910,535 133,776

6 (22,423,193) (3,294,416) (38,299,418) (5,626,950)

(29,292,009) (4,303,582) (46,694,040) (6,860,288)

(14,704,102) (2,160,327) 17,249,430 2,534,286

3,8 25,479,123 3,743,393 8,212,915 1,206,641

45,891 6,742 16,778 2,465

3,8 10,820,912 1,589,808 25,479,123 3,743,393
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2025 30
2025 30 200,457,569
2024 30 210,922,248
2024 2025 30
2005 18
2005 18 2024 10
2005 13

2005 18 2024 10

79/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

80/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

30
90

2024 30

60

81/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 30 2024 30
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2025 30 2024 30
270
149,451 137,169
10,671,191 25,341,954
10,820,912 25,479,123

23,458,980 2024 35,199,180
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2,000,758 2024 30 2,822,476
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1,099,534 2024 30 1,081,072
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2025 2024 2025 2024
30 30 30 30
29,555,216 35,285,540 1,086 1,086
113,147 35,352
(3,388,799) (5,765,676)
26,279,564 29,555,216 1,086 1,086
2025 2024 2025 2024
30 30 30 30
28,060,385 33,299,130 11,710,015 13,612,990
219,610 174,980
(2,852,946) (5,238,745) (1,239,398) (2,077,955)
25,207,439 28,060,385 10,690,227 11,710,015
2025 30
100 2024 100 2025 30
100
2024 100 2025 30
100 2024 100
8,080,458
0.2910 2024 9,315,803 0.2872

2024
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2024

65

5,381,203

3,028,542

0.204

83

2,678,729
0.24

2024
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2025 30 2024 30
149,312,743 303,363,344
86,775,800 146,413,080
208 314
18,188,140 19,080,892
2,210,581
637,648,882 653,601,249
2,234,186 4,355,452
5,971,780 13,501,873
3,917,464 12,687,921
12,595,000 13,010,000
* 2025 30 2024 30
10
10
*x 177 31 34,506,922
4,215,671 2024 280
34 54,247,937 4,232,754
2025 30 2024 30
255,000,000 490,800,000
151,300,000 449,700,000
300 400
19,100,000 34,300,000
1,700,000 940,000
748,400,000 1,053,100,000
2,400,000 4,400,000
15,500,000 35,600,000
11,600,000 8,000,000
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99

*x 8,900,000 2024 13,500,000
2024
2024 30
2025 30
2025 30 0.78
2024 30 0.98
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2025 30 4.92 0.14 4.85
2024 30 6.70 0.17 6.60
2025 30

2,203,638 2,203,638

88,700 88,700

12,659 12,659

5,267,729 165,239 5,432,968

179,951 179,951

127,118 127,118

5,267,729 2,777,305 8,045,034

1,008,126 1,008,126

42,750 42,750

38,383 38,383

572,715 572,715

903 903

56,525 56,525

104,970 104,970

100,614 100,614

1,924,986 1,924,986

270 270

270 270
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2024 30
1,949,871 1,949,871
15,779 15,779
95,710 95,710
242 242
5,812,617 674,016 6,486,633
21,454 21,454
195,240 195,240
3,942 3,942
128,186 128,186
5,812,617 3,084,440 8,897,057
784,676 784,676
994 994
34,427 34,427
9,926 9,926
1,375 1,375
4,071 4,071
2,441 2,441
595,119 595,119
18,372 18,372
6,072 6,072
25,582 25,582
116,655 116,655
16,488 16,488
10,424 10,424
11,789 11,789
9,007 9,007
23,347 23,347
16,089 16,089
41,038 41,038
32,020 32,020
1,759,912 1,759,912

2024 30
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2025 30
3,100,292 3,100,292
10,671,191 149,721 10,820,912
5,772,737 5,772,737
131,703 131,703
71,750 71,750
2,075,368 2,075,368
35,158,191 60,614,565 137,049,389 217,588 233,039,733
45,961,085 60,614,565 137,049,389 11,387,456 255,012,495
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13,834 13,834

41,057,000 41,057,000

159,106 159,106

28,290 28,290

32,010 284,674 1,974,000 2,290,684

233,068 233,068

78,242 78,242

558,861 558,861

625,994 615,691 8,342,789 551,367 10,135,841

686,294 900, 365 10,316,789 42,651,478 54,554,926

2024 30

3,903,548 3,903,548

25,341,954 137,169 25,479,123

17,774,399 17,774,399

104,384 104,384

1,798,646 1,798,646

44,776,747 50,938,818 169,705,262 322,311 265,743,138

70,223,085 50,938,818 169,705,262 23,936,073 314,803,238

13,504 13,504

73,892,650 73,892,650

189,719 189,719

253,213 253,213

413,431 1,967,537 2,380,968

639,703 639,703

96,039 96,039

382,793 382,793

553,633 1,953,901 23,357,020 167,847 26,032,401

806,846 2,367,332 25,324,557 75,382,255 103,880,990
2025 30 2024 30

1,639,927 2,191,960

12,486,034 8,864,549

14,125,961 11,056,509
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2025 30 2024 30
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2025 30
42,176,017 8,182,986 204,653,492 255,012,495
13,834 13,834
8,028,681 33,028,319 41,057,000
159,106 159,106
28,290 28,290
2,290,684 2,290,684
233,068 233,068
78,242 78,242
558,861 558,861
903 811,038 9,323,900 10,135,841
9,100,985 33,839,357 11,614,584 54,554,926

98/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 30

74,394,306 14,593,048 225,815,884 314,803,238

13,504 13,504
73,892,650 73,892,650
189,719 189,719
253,213 253,213
2,380,968 2,380,968
639,703 639,703
96,039 96,039
382,793 382,793
116,655 488,676 25,427,070 26,032,401
75,584,276 488,676 27,808,038 103,880,990
23,458,980
2024 35,199,180
2025 2024
30 30

16.30 13.15

2.92 2.47

4.56 1.73

13.14 8.96

18.32 18.32

8.22 6.07

2.92 3.34

10.57 12.40
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33.56

100.00

100.00

2025

30

2024

30
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983,579 2024 856,696
835,627 2024 673,191
10
2025 30 14._45
34,082,552 2024
18.49 51,299,986
13.88 38,492,740
12.44 34,509,000
2025 30 2024 30
204,436,463 219,904,871
22,999,000 34,509,000
. 3,600,489 6,885,584
10,820,912 25,479,123
5,772,737 17,774,399
2,075,368 1,798,646
3,100,292 3,903,548
104,384
131,703
11
2025 30 2024 30
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2024
2024
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2025 30

1,974,000 316,684 2,290,684
156,484 156,484
1,014,750 1,014,750
770,396 770,396
127,911 127,911
430,207 430,207
980,342 980,342
1,984,707 1,984,707
536,010 536,010
5,369,495 5,369,495
2,849,947 2,849,947
3,642,194 3,642,194
10,417,239 10,417,239
2,639,584 2,639,584
6,754,790 6,754,790
12,870,506 12,870,506
353,097 353,097
3,131,022 3,131,022
1,665,675 1,665,675
764,586 764,586
6,082,049 6,082,049
14,347,076 14,347,076
24,449,838 24,449,838
19,476,478 19,476,478
18,828,716 18,828,716
616,054 616,054
1,764,774 1,764,774
739,172 739,172
3,114,141 3,114,141
640,069 640,069

639,711 639,711
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241,151 241,151
1,913,629 1,913,629
2,147,543 2,147,543

752,934 752,934
33,448,065 33,448,065
39,484,437 39,484,437

225,461,463 227,435,463

217,588 217,588

1,870,931 1,870,931
26,034 26,034
3,489,717 3,489,717
5,604,270 5,604,270
233,039,733

10,671,191 10,671,191
5,703,213 5,703,213
497,853 497,853
551,367 551,367
1,407,144 1,407,144
2,462,828 2,462,828
4,421,339 4,421,339
5,714,502 5,714,502

10,135,841

105/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4,386,102 4,386,102

380,818 380,818
2024 30

1,646,769 1,646,769

1,891,000 489,968 2,380,968

431,183 431,183

1,104,616 1,104,616

790,612 790,612

195,392 195,392

173,771 173,771

920,561 920,561

2,128,330 2,128,330

388,737 388,737

4,103,846 4,103,846

2,615,085 2,615,085

3,004,073 3,004,073

9,491,675 9,491,675

2,778,743 2,778,743

6,447,649 6,447,649

5,789,366 5,789,366

3,021,443 3,021,443

1,395,557 1,395,557

359,906 359,906

3,469,483 3,469,483

17,696,862 17,696,862

26,155,570 26,155,570
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10,801,079 10,801,079
22,033,051 22,033,051
506,947 506,947
1,406,427 1,406,427
553,530 553,530
3,185,088 3,185,088
326,927 326,927
645,218 645,218
490,371 490,371
1,556,090 1,556,090
1,740,949 1,740,949
889,997 889,997
41,077,441 41,077,441
72,710,559 72,710,559
1,891,000 252,522,871 254,413,871
322,311 322,311
4,517,067 4,517,067
6,489,889 6,489,889
11,329,267 11,329,267
265,743,138

25,341,954 25,341,954
7,599,938 7,599,938
888,596 888,596
647,971 647,971
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167,847 167,847
3,029,978 3,029,978
18,149 18,149
248,658 248,658
6,085,484 6,085,484
9,550,116 9,550,116
16,482,285 16,482,285
26,032,401
7,054,695 7,054,695
72,363 72,363

2025 30 2024 30
10,671,191 25,341,954
191,696,714 210,955,462
22,999,000 34,509,000

2024

10,449,065 6,568,441
5,604,270 11,329,267
2,290,684 2,380,968
243,710,924 291,085,092
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2025 30 2024 30

348,276 (13,315,998)

7,670,294 13,857,033

8,018,570 541,035

2.00 0.60
1.60 1.00
2,493,349 2024 2,128,207
1.80 1.20

2025 30 372,472 2024

319,255
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22,500

0.02 60,000 15,000

0.10

0.10

67,500
0.0030

5,000

2025 30 2024 30
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300,000
75,000
10
11
Barclays
Capital Inc. BofA
Bank of Barclays (clearing  Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC broker) Inc. BNP Paribas N.A.
2025 30
§ 626,591
*#
* #
* #
§
# 3,850 17,469
# 1,364 301,899
** 22,999,000
5,214 17,469 626,591 22,999,000 301,899
§ 472,812
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* ¢
* ¢ 15,432
* 4
22,076
61,178 62,613 70,022
# 105,172 329,806 53,427
181,782 62,613 494,888 329,806 123,449
(176,568) (45,144) 131,703 22,999,000 (27,907) (123,449)
## 1 (134,757) (22,959) 22,999,000 (110,800)
(41,811) (22,185) 131,703 (27,907) (12,649)
TBA o
TBA o
23,458,980
TBA o (134,757) (22,959) (110,800)
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Citigroup Deutsche Goldman HSBC JPMorgan JPMorgan
Global Bank Sachs Bank Chase Securities
Markets, Inc. AG International PLC Bank N.A. LLC
2025 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,473,961 33,990
§
781
83,704 2,757 6,523
# 50,599 1,146,758
*%k
1,473,961 50,599 117,694 2,757 1,153,281 781
§
* #
* # 518,424 256,231
*#
§
29,071
13,778 21,013 24,422
# 176,575 566,625
518,424 176,575 13,778 21,013 591,047 285,302
955,537 (125,976) 103,916 (18,256) 562,234 (284,521)
#HT 955,537 (112,965) 103,916 562,234 (284,521)
(13,011) (18,256)
TBA iid
TBA i 956,000 120,000 698,000
TBA i (112,965) (362,312)

113/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Merrill Mizuho Morgan Morgan Stanley NatWest State Street
Lynch Capital Stanley & & Co.Inter- Markets Bank and
International  Markets LLC Co.LLC national PLC PLC Trust Co.
2025 30
§
*# 26,034
* #
*# 147,122 198,599
102,881
37,399 50
*%k
147,122 37,399 327,514 50
§
* #
*# 30,873 5,823
*#
82,846 123,109
14,598 10,375
30,873 14,598 99,044 123,109
116,249 22,801 228,470 50 (123,109)
#H T 116,249 22,801 (15,971) (121,780)
244,441 50 (1,329)
TBA idd 141,363 32,010
TBA idd
TBA ** (12,977) (15,971) (121,780)
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Toronto- Wells Fargo WestPac
Dominion Bank UBS AG Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.
2025 30
§ 626,591
*# 26,034
*#
*# 1,853,672
§
781
404 217,588
# 332,862 1,870,931
*x 22,999,000
404 332,862 27,594,597
§ 472,812
*#
*# 826,783
*#
§ 22,076
29,071
86,660 5,043 683 551,367
# 150,566 1,407,144
86,660 155,609 683 3,309,253
(86,256) 177,253 (683) 24,285,344
# T 177,253
(86,256) (683)
TBA i 143,311 316,684
TBA idd 200,000 1,974,000
23,458,980
TBA i (894,521)
*
**
T
#
#it
8
392,920
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Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2024 30
* #
§ 1,088,236
* #
* #
*#
§
# 34,193 5,533 24,394
# 746,240 95 757,725
** 34,509,000
780,433 5,628 1,088,236 34,509,000 782,119
* #
8§ 1,274,997
* #
* # 24,274
* #
§ 66,452
# 13,229
# 497,640 86,574 432,928
521,914 99,803 1,341,449 432,928
258,519 (94,175) (253,213) 34,509,000 349,191
#t 76,537 34,509,000 283,331
181,982 (94,175) (253,213) 65,860
TBA il 76,537 123,331
TBA ** 160,000
35,199,180
TBA ** (388,194)
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2024 30
*#
§
*#
*#
*# 1,001,680 946,972 149,492
24,965 33,707
212,827
**k
1,001,680 946,972 212,827 174,457 33,707
*#
§
*#
*# 1,546,952 497,231 168,401
*#
10,339 1,440
220,753 194,736
1,546,952 497,231 220,753 373,476 1,440
(545,272) 449,741 (7,926) (199,019) 32,267
#HT (451,333) 420,000 (199,019)
(93,939) 29,741 (7,926) 32,267
TBA i
TBA ** 420,000
TBA il (451,333) (221,858)
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JPMorgan Chase

JPMorgan

Merrill Lynch

Mizuho Capital

Morgan Stanley &

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Markets LLC Co.lInternational PLC
2024 30
* #
§
*#
*#
*# 887,503 156,758 429,493
§
104,384
9,750 36,847
# 2,246,706 1,706 184,548
**k
2,256,456 991,887 156,758 1,706 650,888
* # 18,149
§
* # 248,658
*# 830,729 33,381 66,525
*#
§
135,914
# 1,258,520 12,010 113,584
1,276,669 830,729 33,381 12,010 564,681
979,787 161,158 123,377 (10,304) 86,207
#HT 978,000 161,158 123,377 33,714
1,787 (10,304) 52,493
TBA i 133,989
TBA ** 978,000 233,000 33,714
TBA il
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WestPac

Banking Corp.

2024 30
* 4
§ 1,088,236
* ¢
* ¢
* ¢ 3,571,898
§
104,384
27,566 81,911 37,746 2,799 2,900 322,311
46,696 320,524 4,517,067
o 34,509,000
27,566 81,911 84,442 323,323 2,900 44,112,896
* 18,149
§ 1,274,997
* 4 248,658
* ¢ 3,167,493
* ¢
§ 66,452
458 6,467 167,847
13,263 199,970 3,029,978
13,721 206,437 7,973,574
27,566 81,911 70,721 116,886 2,900 36,139,322
## T 81,911 100,000
27,566 70,721 16,886 2,900
TBA ok 122,397 456,254
TBA o 100,000 1,924,714
35,199,180
TBA o (1,061,385)
*
*%*
.l.
#
#H
8§
457,342
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Combined statements of financial position

End of each reporting period
April30

ASSETS
Furtancial mssers & Reirvaluetroagh poodic o loss " 24 811 SATNE VAT MG TA3 138
Sales of imvestments awaiting settlement B Lxsrker) V1T s
Recervable fiom Manager 8,9 11,150 -
Recetvabile forvanation margin on futunes contracs 48 - 10m4,284
Recetiable for vaniathon margin on centrally deared swap contracts 4.8 131,103 -
Incerest and cther iecenabdes Z07T5,368 1,798 B
Cath daicd Cash edninaaling 28 LR AT
Drsprcrssts with Beokes 4 210092 3903548
Total Assets 155,012,495 314,503,238
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Fistancial lisbalities st Lair vishes throwgh profitor oss ® 34,811 10,135841 FaE2 a1
Puichases of irmvestments awalting settlement 8 10 41,057,000 13,5353 650
Redempricns of units svening sertlement B 59,106 189,719
Payabile for variaticn maigin on futuses contracts. 48 2840 -
Payabile for variation mangin on certrally cleared swap cortraos 4.8 #3713
Patyable for mansgoment bedes B9 FEES ] B35 TO3
Pisgall e [ar Susiody W TTREA et |l e A9 18,7 95039
Collsteral an Cortain derprative cordracts, a1 wue ] SA0ERL 2,380,365
Paryableto bicker E 13,534 13504
it b DECiL ! Sapinils A9 oE8 6] 383 a3
Tatal Liabilities [excluding net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units) 54,554,906 103,580,590
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at fair value n 1.5 §200,457,569 5210,922, 248
Met Asiels attributable to holders of redeemable units of the:
Putrsgin Deveersaliedd Usooamg Tayst (Dayrmdan) SESIT BES SAl0a8543T

" SeeMote ¥

#AL paricd end April 30, 20024, the funds valued net assets at bid/fash prices. Pericd end Apnl 33, 2025 Note 3 references the updated valuation process,

The accompaming notes are anintegral part of these financial statements,

Putnam Diversified incame Trust Funds {Cayman) ]

121/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

For the years ended
Ageril 30

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) Nates 2025 2024
Interest irom finencial assets and financizd Babilities at fairvalue through profit oross 1.8 514, 15561 511056, 506
Netreatizod and changs in unrestized gain floss) of 2esets and liabdities in fonsipn corencies 458491 16,774
Ketrealized and change inunrealized gain Tloss) on francial assets and financal labilities at fair

velue through prcfit of foss TaT2 B G 5T
Tatal aperating income/(lass) 22,144,531 11,597,544
OPERATIMG EXPENSES

Management fies g FA LT 3274971
Cusasdy foes ] T2.260 96,59
Administrative fees q 61446 50519
Tiaisler apent fees q ITH 343 EIT 304
Trustes foes g 54,113 63,355
ALt fees 9 678 SyEa5
Ot har igpemnses a 110353 - trec]
Feimbursal from Manager ] IT2A1 (319,255)
Total operating expenses 3347814 3,733,789
Operating profit/(loss) 18,796,707 7.863,815
Finance Costs

Dhstribwilions to kol cders of redeeimable s T {R0599TF {9,305, 157]
Profit){Loss) after distributi ons 10,736,785 (1,441,343)
Increase|Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units

fram operations 510,736,785 511,441,342}

The accompaming noles are anintegral part of these fimancial statements,
Putnam Diversified inoome Trust Funds [Cayrman] ]
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Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

Met fasels attributable to holders of redeemable wnits at the beginning of year
Increase/{Decrease) innet assets attributable to holders of redeemalble units

fram operations
REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTIONS
Proceeds (rom unis issued
Class M
Valueol units pedeemed
Class
Classi
Increase/{Decreate) in net assets resulting from redeemable unit transactions
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the end of year
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The accomipamdng nobes are anintepral part of these financial statements
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For the years ended
April 30

Kotes 2025 2004
§210,922 248 $249,828,271

10,736,785 1,441, 342)

11538

15 ad 135 v, Ha, o

by B 24 (30,7785

(21,201,464) (37,464,581)

.8 5200457 569 5210,922,2458
wtnam Diversified income Trust Funds [Cayman) 0
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Combined statements of cash flows

For the years ended
April 30
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Potes 2025 004
Increasefihecreasa] in net assets sttbutable to holdersof redemitble units from opertions 510,736,165 (51241 342}
Adjustrent (o reconcile operating peofigiloss) for thefinal period o net cash pererated from )/
fusid in) oparaLing sotnaees
nteest rem finsncial 2ssets and inancial Babiltees ot l2naiee thiough prohitonloss 3 (15513,066] (11,410,097
Disteiticas to the holZers of redeemable units ! BOSaA32 9305157
Mest amonization of peemiums 1,387,135 353,588
Exchange gains/osses) on cash and cash egquialents 145 201 {16778
4,624,865 (3,209,472
Ket{increase)/decrease in sales of irvestments swaiting settbement 8 12,001 662 100,777 219
Ketinciease Ndecrease] in purchases of investments awalting settlement a, 10 132 235 550 0614 800k
Wt (increase] foecredss mn reeralle for vanation margen o [Lfumes corracis 4.8 10,284 {108, 3540
Ketlincreaseljdecrease in fecenableforvariation margin o centrally cheared swap contracs 4.8 (130703} 210463
ket {increasel/decrease in deposits with beokes 4 B NG 35053, 548
Ket (ncresse/decrease in receheble fiom Manager B9 {TL.T50
Keinoieasefdecnease] i peryabie Bor costody and sgministrate fees E.3 LT.aw (TBITS)
hetincieasefiteanase) in pansbbe forvaration margin on lulses contracs 4.8 Baah 1B2A3T)
KetincreaseNdeosase] n pﬂ;_ra:ble!m l.-ru_i.f-.liol' malg!nm!{\enunlt‘,'clnalec_ﬂya!:r!:nr'lrﬂﬁ . u'_us.;{.fi,‘- 255.’??5_3
ket increase fidecreass] n payable 1o broker 4 Eoi] 13,504
Rt irsormasey(decrease] in payabie for managorment bees B9 [l VRN A6 283
hetincrease/{decrease] in collaters on certain dedvative contracts, stvale i (0] 1637554
Metincressefdecioase] in payable for other socrued aapenses 8.9 176,068 32243
ket {increase)idecrease in financial assets at fairvalue through profit orkoss 3,4.8 11 23 A 10,414,401
Kot itcieasefdeomase] mlirancial labilites s fievalue oough peofit on o 34,811 {15,806,560) 1L O,
Cash flows generated h‘o"n,!'lundrn] operating activities a6 49,590,617
Interest necehved 3888 14 352 Eh3
Met cash generated from| used in) operating activities 14,587 0T 63,943,470
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions paid to the halders of redeemable wnits T [B,050,932 19,305,157
Proosts lrarm redeensabile s [ 1.191.Ei6 410535
Redemptions of redeematde wnits & {22.423.193) [#5,295416)
et cash generated from {used in] financing activities (79,292,009) [46,504,040)
Net increase/[decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (14,704,102} 17,245,430
Cashand cash eguivslents at beginnirg o yes 3.8 15479133 H.212815
r-;xl'argﬁrgeu'st,-krss_avi nnl:eshnnn:lcas!* Equalents AnAaL 16,7748
Cashand cash equivalents at end of year 3.8 510,820,912 515,479,123

The accompaming notes are anintegral part of these financial statements,
3 I

Putnam Diversified incame Trust Funds {Cayman) 11
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Notes to combined financial statements 4,/30/25

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Notes tocambined financial statements, references o " State Street”, if any, represent State Stroel Bank and Trust Company
and references to "OTC®, if any, represent over-the-counter, References to “unds’ net assets” are based on net assets of S200,457,569 at April 30,
A5 5210,072 248 at Apeil 30, 2024, Unless otherwise noted, the "reporting perod” represents the period Fromm Many 1, 0024 theough April 30, 2025,

Putnae Diversified Income Trust {Caymian) Master Fund (the *Master Fund "} is a series trust of the Putnam Offshore Master Series Trust {ihe
“Master Trust”), pursuant Lo a Master Base Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005 and a Master First Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005
and Suppfemental Trust Deed dated Colober 2, 2004 bebween CI3C Caribbean Bank and Trust Company {Cayman) Limited and Franklin Advisers,
s {the *Manager”) formedy The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC)L Putnam Diversified income Trost {Caanan) (the *Feader Fund”) is a series
truest of the Putnam Offshore Feeder Series Trust ithe *Feeder Trust®™), pursteant Lo a Feeder Base Trust Deed dated Julby 13, 2005 {as amended) and
a Fesder Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005 (as amended] and Supplemental Trust Deed dated Octaber 4, 2024 between MaplasFs
Lirmitesd amvd Frankiin Advisers, inc, (the "Manager™), The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered under the Muteal Funds Act {As Revised) of the
Cayman islanids.

The Master Funid and Feeder Fund operate as a master/feeder fund structure (colleckively the “funds™) {each individually a *fund®) wherelny
substantially all of the net assets of the Feeder Fund areimvestad inonits of the Master Fund. These combaned financiad statements are in respect
of the funds, comgprising, the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund,

Separate books and reconds are maintained foreach fund in onder to determine the net asset vatue for the Feeder Fund. The Feeder Fund has the
same Inherent risks as the Master Fund,

The investment chjective of the fursds is to seek as high a level of current income as the Manager believes is consistent with preservation of
capital. The Manager will seek to achieve the funds” objective by investing mainty in bonds that are securitized debt instruments and ather
chbligaticonsof companies and governiments worldwide, are either imvestment-grade or below investment-grade (highyield bonds), and have
indermediate ba long-tenm maturities (three vears o lenger),

2, BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financial statements have been preparad in compliance with IFRS Accownting Sandanas as published by the iIntermnational
FAocounting Standands Board ASE"), The principal accownting policies have been applisd consistently by the Tunds for all periods presented,
uriless othersese stated.

Current period and prioryearcombined financial statements of the funds are presented on a combined basis as management considers that

the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent one ceporting entity given the manner inwhich the entities are managed, References to the
financial staterments hereafter are Lo be considered on a combined basis, intragroup balances and transactions, incleding income, espenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full,

The Manager makes estimates and assumptions.conceming the future that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liablities, Estimates
arecantinually evaluated and based on histoncal experence and other facters, including expectations of future events that are believed ta be
reascnabde wnder the circumstances. Actual resulls could differ from thase estimates and differences could be material,

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The fallowang is a surmanary of the matinal accountng and feporting poboes used in prepading the fimancial statements

The: financial staterments have been prepared an a historical cost basis, as medified by the revaleation of financial assets and liabilities classified
at fair value through profit or loss. The preparation of financial statements inconformity with IFRS Accounting Standards, requires management
to make estimates and assumplions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ fram these estimates,

{a) Financial instruments

(i} Classification

The Master Fund classifies its imvestments based on both the Master Fund's business micdel for managing those financial assets and the
caonfractual cash flowcharacteristics of the financial assets. The portfolicof inancial assels is managed and perfomance s evalualed on a
fairvalue basis. The Master Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information Lo assess the assets’ performance
and to make decisions. The Master Fund has not taken the option to irrevocably designate any equity securities as fairvalue through other
comprehensig income. The contractual cash fovs of the Master Fund's debt secunbies are salely principal and interest, however, these
secumities are not held for the purpase of collecting contractus! cash Mows. The collection of contractual cash Rows s only incidental to
achieving the Master Fund's business model's ohjective, Consequently, all investments are measurad at fair value through profit or loss.
Derivative contracts that have a negative fairvalue are presented as liabilities at fairvalue through profitor loss, As such, inaccord ance with
IFRS 8, the Master Fund dlassifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or labilities at fair value through profit orloss,

Putnam Diversified incame Trust Funds [Cayman) 2
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(i} Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and salesof investments are recagnized on the trade date - the date onwhich the Master Fund commits 1o puschase or sell the
irnvestrmednt. linestinents are devecapnited when the aghts ta receive cash Nows from the imestiments Dianse egpived ard the Master Fund
has transferrad substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Securities purchased or sold ana delayed delivery basis may be setiled at
a future date beyand customary setllement time; interest incorme is accrued based on the termsaf the secunties, Losses may anise due to
changes in the fair value of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does nat perfarm under the contract.

Purchases and sales of imvestments swaiting settbement represent payables for securities purchased and receivables for securitios sold
that have been contracted for but mot yet settled or delivered on the staterment of inancial position date respectively, The due from
brakers balance, iFany, isheld for collection. These amounts are recagnised intially at Tairvalue and subseguently imeasused ot amoetisod
cost. it each reporting date, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the
Iietime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, I, at the reporting date, the credit risk
hasnct increased significantly since initial recognition, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance at an amount equal 1o 17-manth
enpactod creditbosses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probahility that the brokerwill enterbankruptoy or financial recrgani-
sation, and defaultin payments are all considered indicators that a loss altowance may be required, |7 the credit risk increases to the point
that it is considered 1o be eredit impaired, interest income will be caleulated based on the gress camying amount adjusted for the lass
allowance. Asignificantincreass in credit risk isdefined by management as any contractual payment which is mcee than 30 days past dus,
Ay contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due s considered credit impaired,

(iii) Measurement

Financial assets and Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recogmized at fair value, Transaction costs are
recorded in the Statements of camprehensive income {loss] as part of the net realized and changs inunrealized gaingiloss) on financial
assets and financial liabilities at fairvalue through profitor loss. Subseguent toinitial recognition, all financial assets at fairvalue through
prafiter less are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes In the falr value of the “Financial Assets or Financial
Liabslities at fair value through profit o loss’ category are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) in the periodin
which they arise

Investments for which markel quotations are readily available are valued at the last reported sales price on their principal exchange, or
afficial closing price for certain markets, and are dassified as Leve! | securities under IFRS 7 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
{IFRS 7). If no sales are reported, as in the case of some securities that are traded OTC, a security is valued at the average of the last
reported bid and ask prices, the “mdd-price”, and is generally categornized as a Level 2 security. For the pericd ended April 30, 2024, pricr 1o
the change in Manager, the fair value measurement used by the fumd was at bidfask prices.

Market quatations arenat considered tabereadily available for certain debt abligations fincluding short-tenm investments with remaining
maturities of 60 days or less) and other investiments; such imvestments are valued on the basés of valuations furmished by anindependent
pricng service approved by the Manager or deslers solected by the Manager. Sich senvices or dealers determine valuations fes normal
institutional-size trading units of such securities using methods based on market transactions for comparable securities and various rela-
ticnships, generally recognized by institulional traders, betwesn securities (which consider such factors as security prices, yields, matur-
ities and ratings). These securities will gemerally be categorized as Level 2, Cerlain securities may be valued an the basis of a price provided
by a single source. Securities quoted in fareign cumendies, it any, are translated into LS, Dollars at the current exchange rate.

T the extent a pricing service or dealer is unable to value a security or provides a valuation that the Manager does not believe accu-
ratehy roflects thi secimity’s farvalue, the securiby will bevalied ot fair valiue by the Manager in accardance vath policies and procedures
approved by the Manager, Certain imvestments, including certain restricted and illiquid securities and derivatives, are also valued at fir
value following procedures appraved by the Manager. These valuations consider such factors as significant market or specific security
events such asinterest rate or credit quality changes, varous refalionshipswith ather securities, discount rates, LS, Treasury, LS. swap
and credit yields, index levels, comvaxity exposures, recovery rates, sales and other multiples and resale restrictions. Thesa securities are
classified as Level 2 or as Levsl 3 depending on the priarity of the significant inputs.

Generally, trading in cortain securties (sich as foreign securities) is substanteally completed each day at vasi ous Uimes pace o the close
af the NYSE. The Master Fund translates prices for its investments. quoted in forefgn curencies intoe LS. daollars at cument exchange rates,
which are generally determined as of 4:00 PM. Eastem Standard Time each day the NYSE is open. As aresult, changes in thevalue of those
currencies in relation to the U5, dellar may afect the fund's NV 4 a result, the Manager orits delegate uses fairvalue pricing procedures,
Thesa securities, which would generally be dassified as Level 1 securities, will be transferred to Level 2 of the fair value hiesardhy when
thesy are valued at fadr value.

Investmentsin colflective or otherinvestrent funds arevalued with reference 1o their respective net assel value per unit oo therelevant
waluation date.

For theyvears ended April 30, 2025 and April 30, 2024, no secunities or desivatives were fairvalued by the Manager.

{b) Off-setting financial instruments
Finamcial assets and liabilities are affsst and the net ameuntis repartod in e Statements of inancial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to-off-set the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on anet basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Pustinam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) 13
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{c} Income from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Imterest is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the efective interest method, iInterest incorme includes interest from cash and cash
adipvalents. interes) fram financal assets at far value theough profil or lassingludes interest fream debl securnities, incore received from collective
or ather immeestrment funds is recorded on the ex-date and retain the character of income as eamed by the underlying imestment. Al premiums/
discounts are amartized/acereted on ayield-to-malunity basis, The Master Fund eared certain fees in connection with ifs sender lean purchasing
activities. These fees are treated as market discount and are amortized inta income in the Staterments of comprehensive income {loss),

(d) Distribution paolicy

Distributians to the unitholders from operating profit/{loss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to unitholders of the Feeder Fund, subject to the
approval of the Manager, Income distributions, if any, will be made monthly. Distributions to unithalders of the Feeder Fund are recognived asa
finance costin the Statements of comprehensive income (lossh, Distributions from capital gains, if army, are recorded on the ecdividend date and
prarich at least annually,

{e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks, including foreign curmencies, Cash equivalents are short-term highly ligquid imvestrments that are
readily comvertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalue, and areheld for the purpose of meeting
short-tenm cash needs rather than for investments or other purposes, Bank cverdrafts, if any, are shown as payable to custodian in the
Statermants of financial position,

I April 30
Cash and cash equivalents | 2025 024
Foreign cash i i 5|
LisD cash 148,451 137, 16G
Cash equivalents tngTL a1 25,341 554
Total cash and cash equivalents | $10,500,912 525,475,123

(f} Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, threugh its custodian, recetves delivery of theunderying secuarities, the fair value ofwhich at the time of purchase is required to
b inan amcaunt at least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. Collateral for certain tri-party repurchase agreements, which totaled
53458 Sul (2024; 535,199, 180) at the end of the reporting period, isheld at the counterparty's custodian in a segregated account far the benefit

of the Master Fund and the counterparty. The Marges is respansible for determining that thevatue of these underying securities is al all times st
Ieast equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. In the event of default or banknaptoy by the other party to the agresment, retention of
the collateral revy be subject Lo legal prececdings.

(g} Stripped securities

The Master Fund may invest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that may be structured In dasses with rights to
recenve different portions of the interest and principal. interest-only securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of
the principal. if the interest-anty securilies expenience greater than andicipated prepayments of principal, the Master Fund may fail to recoup fully
itz initial investment in these securities. Conversely, principal-only securnities increase invalue If prepayments are greater than anticipated and
decline if prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fair value of these securities is highly sensitive to changes ininferest rates.

{h) Foreign currency translation

[i} Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting records of the Master Fund and Feeder Fund are maintained in U.5. Dollars, the currency in which they receive subscrip-
ticns anxd facilitate redemptions of their redeemable units, The Manager considers the U5, dellar the currency that mest faithfully
represents the economic effect of the undedying transactions, events and conditions. The U5 dellaris the currency inwhich the funds
measure their performance and repart their results, This determination alsa considers the competitive environments invadvich the funds
are compared to other investment products. The financial statements are presented in U5, dollars,

(i} Transactions and Balances

Foraign currency transactions are transiated into the fnctional currancy using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transac-
ticns. The cost of each security is detenmined wsing historical exchange rates. income, expenses and withhalding taxes are transiated at
prevailing exchange rates when earned or incurred. The Master Fund does not isolate that portion of realized or unrealized gains or losses
resulting from changes in the foreign exchange rate on irvestments from Tuctuations ansing from changes in the market prices of the
securnities, Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation and foreign exchange gains and losses refating to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss] as Net realized and change in unrealized gaing{loss) of assets
and liabilitiesin foreign currencies. Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-manetary financial assets and alsilities
such as equities al fairvalee through profit and loss are recognized in the Slatements of comprehensive income (loss) as Net realized and
change inunrealized gaingloss) on financial assets and financial labilities at fairvalee through profit or loss. investments in foreign secu-
rities involye certain risks, including those related 1o economic instability, unfaverable political developments, and currency fluctuations,
ot present with domestic inestrments.
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(i) TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into TEA (to be announced ) commitments to purchase securities for a fiaed unit price at a future date bayond
custeamarny settlerent Bme. Athough the unit price and par amount Dhave been established, the actual secunitios have not been specified.
However, it is anticipated that the amount of the commitments will not significantly differ from the principal amount. The Master Fund halds, and
maintainsuntil settlerment date, cash or high-grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient lo meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enter into offsetting contracts for the farward sale of cther securities it owns. Income on the securities will not be earmed until settlement date.

The Master Fund may also enter into TEA sale cormmitments 1o hedge its portfolio pesitions, to sell morgage-hacked securities it owns under
delayed defivery arrangements or to take a short position in mongage-backed securities. Proceeds of TBA sale commitrents are not recelved
until the conteactual settlement date. Durng the tirmea TBA sale cormitiment is outstanding, sther equivalent defiverable secimities or an affeet.-
ting T8A purchase commitment deliverable onor before the sale commitment date are held as “cover” for the transaction, or other liquid assetsin
an amount equal o the national value of the TAA sale commitment are segregated, If the TAA sale commitment is dlosed through the acquisition
of an offsetting TBA purchase commitiment, the Master Fund realizes a gain or less. IF the Master Fumnd delivers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain or a loss from the sale of the securities based upon the unit price established at the date the commitment was
entersd into,

TBA commismatients, which are sccounted for a8 purchase and sale ransactions, may beconsidered securities thermsedves, and invialve a fsk of lass
due to changes in thevatue of the sacurity prior to the settlement date as well as the risk that the counterparty to the transaction will not pedfom
s obligations. Counterparty risk is mitigated by having a master agreement between the Master Fund and the counterparty.

Umsattled TEA commitments are valued at their Tairvalue according to the procedures described under "Measusement” above, The contract is
marked tomarket daily ard the changs in fairvalue s recorded by the Master Fund as an unrealized gain or loss, Based on market circmstances,
the Manager will determine whether to take delivery of the underbying securities or to dispose of the TBA commitments prior to settlement

4, DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts may senve as a companent of the Master Fund’s imvestment strategy and are utilized primarily to structure and econcmically
hedgeinvestments toenhance performance and reduce risk to the funds, or for other investment purposes. The Master Fund doesnol desgnate
any dagivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS 9 and hence these dervative financial instruments are classi-
fied at fair value throwgh profit or loss. The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may hold or issee include, but ase not limited to, foneards,
futures, cptions, certain currency transactions and swap coniracls,

The Master Fund may enter into cptions contracts. Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instrumentsil there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, If interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or i the countlerparty to the contract isunable to perfonm, [F
awritten call apticn is exercised, the premium originally recened is reconded as an addition to sales proceeds. 1Ta writlen put option is exercised,
the premium originally received is recorded as.a reduction to the cost of investments. Exchange-traded opfions are valued at the last sale price
o, if mo sales are repored, the last bid price for purchased aptions and thelast ask price for written options, OTC traded opions arevalued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on swaps are similar to options on securities except that the premium paid or received is to buy or grant the
right toenter into a previcusly agreed upan interest rate or credit default confract Forward premium swap option contracts include premiums
that hawe extended settlement dates. The delayed settlement of the prerdums is factored Into the daily valuation of the option contracts. in
the case of interest rate cap and flocr contracts, inretum for a premium, cogoing payments between e parties are based on interest rates
excesding a specified rate, in the case of a cap contract, or falling below a specified rate in the case of a floor contract,

The Master Fund may enter into futures contracts, Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments, if there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, ifinterest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or if the counterparty ta the confract is unable Lo perfoom.
‘With futures, there is minimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since futures are exchange traded and the exchange's clearinghouse, as coun-
terparty 1o all exchange traded futures, guarantces the fulures against default, Risks may excesd amounls recognized on the Statements of finan-
cial position. When the contract is dosed, the Master Fund records a realized gainor loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the tirme it was opened and the value at the time it was closed, Fulures contracts are valued at the quoted daily settlement prices established
Iwy the exchange oo which they teade, The Master Furd and the broler agree to exchange an amaount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the
value of the futures contract, Such receipts or panamients are known as “variation margin,”

The Master Fund may by and sell forward cumency contracts, which are agreements betwesn two parties to buy and sell currencies at a set
price an a future date, The US. dollar value of forsard currenoy contracts is determined using current forwand currency exchange rates supgplied
b a quotation service. The fairvalue of the contract will Auctuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The contractis marked to market
daily and the change in fairvalue is recorded as an unreatized gain or loss. The Master Fund records a realized gain or loss equal to the difference
betwooon the value of the contract at the time it was opened and e valee at the time iLwas dosed when the contract matures or by delivery of
the currency. The funds could be exposed to riskif thevalue of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counterparties to the contracts are unable
tx et the terms of thelr contracts or if the Master Fund is unable ta enter inlo a closing position. Risks may exceed amounts recognized oo the
Staternents of financial position,

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/ar centrally cheared interest rate swap contracts, which are arrangements between two partios to
exchange cash flows based on a national principal amownt. An OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an
uplront pearmivm, For OTC mterest sale swap contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as a liability an the Master
Fuml's books. An upfront payment made by the Master fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books. OTC and centrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon quotations from an independent pricing serdce or market makers. Ay
change is recorded asan unsealized gain o boss on OTC intenest rate swaps, Dally luctuationsin thevalue of centrally cleared interest rate swaps
are setlled through a central clearing agent and ase generally recorded invaniation margin an the Statements of financial position and reconded
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asunrealized gain or loss, Payments, mcluding upfront premiums, received or made are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or
the closing of the contract. Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts mayinclude extended effective dates. Payments related
to ihese swap contracts ane accrued Based on the terms of the contract, The funds could beexposed to credit or market risk due o unfaveeable
changes in the fluctuation of interest rates ar if the counterparty defaulis, in the case of OTCinterest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency
or a clearing member defaults, in the case of centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, on its respective obligation to performunder the
contract, The funds” maxdmum sk of boss from counterparty risk or central chearing nisk is the fair vale of the contract. This risk may be mitigated
far OTC interest rate swap contracts by having a masler nelting arrangement Between the Master Fund and the counterparty and far centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts through the daily exchange of varation margin, There is minimal counterparty risk with respact to centrally
deared interest rate swap conteacts due to the cleannghouse guatantes fund and other resousces that are avallable in the event of a cleasing
mermber defaull Risk of loss may escesd amounts recognized on the Statemments of financial position, A the close of the reporting pericd, the
Master Fund has deposited cash valued at 52,000,758 {Aprl 30, 2024 57 822 476} in a segregated account to cover margin requirement cn open
centrally cieared interest rate swap contracts,

The Master Fund may enter inta OTC andfor centrally cleared total rlum swap contracts, which are arrangements to exchange a market-Enked
retumn for a perodic payment, both based on a notional principal amount. To the extent that the total retum of the security, index or other finan-
cial measure underdying the transaction exceeds o falls short of the efsetting interest rate obligation, the Master Fund will receive a payinent
from or make a payment to the counterparty. OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon
quotations from an indepandent pricing sendce or market makers. Any change is recorded as an unraalized gain or loss on OTC total retum swaps.
Dty fluctuations in the value of centrally cheared total retum swaps are settbed through a central cleaning agent and are generally recorded in
vaniation margin on the Statements aof financial position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Payments received or made are recorded as
realized gains of losses, Certain OTC andfor centrally cleared tatal seturn swap contracts may inclede extended effective dates, Payments related
tex these swap contracts ane accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed te credit or market risk due to unfavarable
changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or in the price of the underying security or indes, the possibifity that there is no louid market for these
agreements of that the counterparty may default on its abligaticn to parfom,. The funds’ masimum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central
clearing rigk is the fair value of the contrack. This rsk may bemitigated for OTC tolal refum swap contracts by having amaster netling arange-
ment between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared total return swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation
margin. There i minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally cleared total retumn swap contracts due to the cleaningheuse guarantes fund
and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Risk of loss may excecd amounts recognized on the Statements
of flinandal position.

The: Master Fund may enter into OTC and/or centrally cleared credit default contracts, n OTC and centrally cleared credit defaull contracts, the
protection buyer typically makes a periodic stream of payments to a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receive a
contingent payment upon the cocurrence of a credit event on the reference obligation or all other equally ranked abligations of the reference
antity. Credit events are contract speaific but may include bankruptoy, Tailure to pay, restructuring and obligation acceleration. Fer OTC eredit
default contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as a lability on the Master Fund's books. An upfront payment
madhe by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books, Centrally dieared credit default contracts provide the same ights
tex thve protection buyer and seller excepl the payments between parties, including upfrent premiums, are settled through acentral clearing agent
thraugh variation margin payments. Upfrant and pericdic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centrally deared credit
default contracts are recorded as realized gaing or losses at the reset date or dese of the contract. The OTC and centrally cleared credit default
caniracts are macked to market daily based upon quetations fram an independent pricing service or market makers. Any change in value of
OTC eredit default contracts is recoeded 25 an unrealized gain or loss, Daily luctuations in the value of centrally cleared oredit default contracts
are generally recorded invariation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Upon the ocourrence
of a credit event, the difference betwesn the parvalue and fairvalue of the refarence obligation, net of any proportional amount of the upfront
pavyment, is recorded asa realized gain o loss. in addition to bearing the risk that the credit svent will occur, the funds could be expased o market
risk due to unfavorable changes ininterest rates or i the price of the underying security orindex or the possibility that the Master Fund may be
unable tochose ot its positicn at the same time or at the same price asif it had purchased the underlying reference obligations. In certain circum-
stances, the Master Fund may enter inta offsetting OTC and eentrally cleared oredit default contracts which would matigate ils risk of loss, Risks
of loss may excesd amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position. The furds” maximum dsk of loss from counterparty sk, either
as the pretection seller or as the protection busyer, is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit defaull contracts by
hawing amaster netting arrangement between the Master fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared credit default contracts through
the daity exchange of variation margin, Counterparty risk is furthermitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts due
te the clearinghouse gearantes fund and other rescurces that are avaitalio in the event of a dearing member defaull Where the Master Furd

15 a saller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund may be required to make is equal to the notional
amount. At the dlose of the reporting peniod, the Master Fund has deposited cash valued at 51,000,534 (Apal 30, 2024 51,081 072} in 2 sepregated
acceunt e cover mangin requirerment oo open centrally clearsd credit default contracts,

Income refaled 1o swap contracts is acorued based on the tenms of the contract. Seceivables and pavabiles related Lo closed swap contracts
are presented in the Financial assetsor Financlal liabdlities at falr value through profitorloss lineitems on the Statements of fimancial position,
Fealized and unrealized gains and losses an desivative contracts are inclsded in MNet realized and change in unrealized gaingiloss) on financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value throwgh profit or loss.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instrurents provide a basis for comparizon with instruments recognized on the Statements of
financial position, but they do not necessarily indicate the amecunts of future cash fows invelved or the current Talrvalue of the instruments and
o nat therefore indicate s fond’s expogure o credit or racket peice dsks. Thi desivative instrurments becarme favoratle {assats) or unfavorable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations of market prices or forsgn exchange rates refative Lo their terms. The aggregate contractual or noticnal
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amcunt af dervative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instrursents are favorable or unfavarable, and thus the aggregate Tair
values of dervative financial assets and liabilities can Aluctuate significantly from time to time,

5. TAXATION

The Master Fund investsin securities issued by entities whitch are prirasily doimiciled in cointaes athoer than the Caviman [slands, Marey of those
faraipn countries have tax laws that indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents, such as the funds,

Typically, the foreign tax lialdity, if amy, will bewithheld from the proceeds. insome specific jutisdictions capital gains tages are required to be
determined cn a sell-assessement basis and | therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Master Fund's brakers on awithholding basis.

In accondance with A5 12 — fncome Taxes, the funds are required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that the tas laws of foreign coun-
tries require a tax liability to be assessed on the funds” capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant tasing authorities
heree full knowdedge of all the facts and circumstances. The L lisbifity is then measured at the amount expoected 1o be paid (o the relevant
tasation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enactad or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. Thereis
sormelimes uncertanty about whoether or not a tax labity will ultimately Be paid by the Tunds, Therelone, whon reasoring any uncertsin La
liahilities management considers all of the relevant facts and dircumstances avallable at the time which could influence thelikelihood of payment,
ircluding any formal or infeamal practices of the relevant tax authernties

At April 30, 2025 and spril 30, 20624, the funds had ne significant uncertain tax liability positions with respect to foreign capital gains tases.

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

M the end of the reporting perods, April 30, 2005 and Apeil 30, 2024, the Master Fund had Class 5 and Class | Units available for issue. Unless the
Manager determines otherwize, the minimum initial imeestment for Class 5 is 300 Units and the mimimum subsequent subscrption shall be 10
Umniks, provided that the absclute minimum Initial imvestrments shall be US$50,000 or its eguivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determines othersise, the minimum number of Class | Units that can be subscribed for by weag of initial imeestment shall be 1,000,000
Linits, the minimum aggregate value of the initial investrment shall be USS10,000,000 and the minimum number of Units that can be subscribed for
Loy wry of subsequent imstment shall be 10,000 Units. The absolute minimum aggregate value of the initial investmentin Class | Unils that the
Manager may determine shall be USS50,000,

The Feeder Fumd has unlimited Uinits of capital, Each Uit will represent anundivided bBeneficial interest in the Feeder Fund. MapleseS Limited
[the*Feeder Fund Trustee®), at the direction of the Manager, shall have the power lo designate and issue Units from time ta time by reference toa
separate Class andfor series and determine the manner inwhich Units of any Class and for series differ from Units of any ctherClass and/or serfes.
The: Feeder Fursd currenthy has two Classes of Units, Class J and Class M Units, which are investors into Class 5 of the Master Fund, Class M Units
are sold with a masdmirm front-end sales charge of 275% and do net pay a contingent deferred sales charge (COSC). Class ) Units do nat pay a
front-end sales charge and are subject to.a COSC of wp to 4 009 T those Lnits are redesrmed within five vears of purchase. Unless the Manager
determines athenwise, the minimum initial investment for Class 1 {CDSC) and Class M Units shall e 300 Units and the minimuom subsequent
subscriptions shall be 16 Units,

The net asset value of each class is caleulated by dividing the nel assets atlrbulable to the halders of redesmabsle units of a particular dass of
units, with the total number of cutstanding redesmable units of that class, In acoordance with the provisions of the funds’ governing documents,
irrvestment posilions arevalued basad on the waluation procedures se1 oulin Note 3 i) for the purpose of determining the net asset valee par
umit for subscriptions and redemptions. Proceeds and payiments for redesmable participating units issued and redeemed are shown as mowve-
ments in the Staternents of changes innet assets atiributable to holders of redeemable participating units. The Feeder Fund generally provides.
its unitholders with the right to redeem their interest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date {generally daily) for cash equal ta the proporionate
share of the net assct value of the Feeder Fund, The Manager, the Transler Agent er other delegate of the Manages resenves the right to reject any
application for Units without stating any reason for doing so. The Feeder Fund issues redeemable units, which are redeemable at the hotder's
opticn ardd are classified as fimancial lialdlities, The redeemable units are carried at the redemplion amount that is payalide al the end of the
reparing periad, if the holder exercises the right to put the unit back to the funds.

Uit transactions for the years were as follows:

Master Fund Class & Class |
April 30 April 30
2035 2024 2035 2024
Lisits cutstanding a1 begarming of year FLS5E5HG 25085540 Lias LEes
Lt e 113,147 25352 - -
Uit regeermed 7,388,779 {5, 765,675) = -
Units sutstanding at end of year 26,279,564 20,555,216 1086 1,086
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Feeder Fund Class ) Class M
April 30 April 30
25 2024 2025 2024
Uitz cutstanding at begirning of year FA060385 13FA130 11, Fi00S 1361295
Uits Tesued - - 213610 174980
Urits receenned 7.852,346) {5:238,745) {1239,39%) (2077355 |
Units sutstanding at end of year 25,207,439 28,060,385 10,690,227 10,710,015

A Aprfl 30, 2025, 100%of the Feeder Fund's Class ) and Class M redeemable units were held by one unaifilialed fvestor (A0048: 1005%5). AL April 30,
025, 100% of the Master Fund’s Class S redeemable units were held by the Feeder Fund (2024; 160905 At Apeil 30, 2025, 1005 of the Master Fund's
{lass | redesmable units were held by an affiliate of the Manager (2024 100%),

7.DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributicns to the unithalders are made at the discretion of the Managerin an amaount and at such time as determined to be appropriate. At the
end of the reporting perod, dividends paid ty the Master Fund Class S amcunbed (o $8,080,458 o S0.2910 per unit (2024 59,315,803 or 50,2872
per unit). Al the end af the reporting period, there were no dividends paid to Class | 2024 $5il).

At the end of the reporting pericd, dividends pald by the Feeder Fund Class J and Class M amounted toe 55,381,203 or S0.204 per unit (2024;
56,276,615 or SO0 per wnit) and 52,678, 129 08 50,24 per unit (200241 53,028,542 or 50.24 perumt), respectively, Distributions fram the Feeder Fumd
are recagnized in the Statements of comprehensive income {loss) as a finance cost.

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funds haveinvestment guaidelines that set out their overall business strategies, their (elerance for risk and their general risk management
phitasephy. The funds” financial assets and liabilities at fairvalue comprize the Master Fund's financial instruments which may incledes:

+ Imwestments including fixed-income securities, floating rate securities and equity securities;
+  Bomdsthat are securntized debt instruments and other obligations of companies and governments wordwide,
Cash and shoe-tenm imestments; and

«  Derivative transactions which the Master Fund enters inda Lo manage thainterest rale and currency riskes arigng froem Uee Masler Fund's
Investment activities.

[a) Market price risk

‘White it is the intenticn of the Manager to implerment strategies which ars designed ta minimize potential bosses, there can be no assurance that
these strategies will be successiul, (tis pessible that animeestor may lose a substantial proportion or all of its imvestment. Asaresult, sach investor
should carefully consider whether it can afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds.

The funds are exposed to market risk (which inchedes market price risk, foreign currency risk, Interest rate risk), lguidity rsk and credit ordefaull
rizk_ The funds’ sk management processconsists of a multi-layered and cross funclional review that provides a system of checks and balances.
The Manager performs perodic reviews and agrees on policies far managing each of these risks and they are summari zed befow, These policies
hawee remained substantially unchanged since the beginning of the pericd to which these financial statements relate,

Markat risk arises mainly from uncerainty about future prices of financial nstruments hald, i represents the potential boss the funds might suffer
thraugh holding market positicns in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investment or factors affecting all
irstnaments traded in the market. The Manager considers the asset allocation of the fundsin ceder to minimize the risk asscciated with particular
countries or industry sectors whibe continuing o follow the funds' investment objective through a careful selection of securities and ather finan-
cial instruments within specified limits. Markel risk can also potentially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered inta by the funds. The
Manager measwres both the Master Fund’s total risk as well as their risk of underperformance versus their stated benchmark,

Under nommial market conditions, the Manager expects toinvest 15% - 65% of the Master Fund's net assetsin each of these three sectors LLS,
and imvestment-grade sector - US. government securities and investment -grade bonds of US. companies, High vietd sector - lower-rated
bonds of U5 companies, and Intemational sector - bonds of foredgn governments and compankes, including both imeestrment grade and
lewer-rated securities,

At the end af the reporting period, investmentsin U5, securifies were approximately 835 (2024; approxmately 8295,
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Al the end of the reporting periods, the funds' notional exposure on derivative confracts was as. follows:

Agril 30

2005 2024
Purchased interest rate sevap option contrads {contract amount) 5145312,143 4303363 344
WHITEn Infesest [20e SWap ORI CONMacts (Contract Amaount) SA6,TT3A00 5146413080
Futwres contracts inumber of contracts) ** Ha 3.
Forisarng CUImm oy Comacts (oomtaast amaint] * S1ELES,140 319,080,842
OTC mtenest rale Swap Conracts [nolionsd) = 2210581
Centrally cdeaied interest rale swap contracts (notional) 5637 648,857 HRS3 6L MA
OTC total return swap contracts (roticnal; L3341 EG 8305452
OTC credit default eorrscts - pratecion puichated irotional) 55571780 S1350L AT
OTC cregit default contracts - protection sold (noticnal) S3917 464 512,687,571
Contrad y clesiid ciecdit delaull corteacts - protection sald {poteesl) S1.505,000 S13010.000

* For the peokds endid Apnl 30, 2025 and Apnil 23, 2024, the Master Fund Sid not héve motion sl exposune, in scess of 109, 5.2 percont of pet assens, Theos ame no
other concentrations to cormendy risk in excess of 109 of net assets < 3 result of ferwand derivative notitnals.

** For the repoating, pened, the Master Furd held U.S, Treasury securifies &nd & Euro-Babl securty with nomber of contracts votaling 177 and 31 ans notional
amounts tofaling 534,506,907 and 542 15671, respectively (2004 U5, Treasury securities and a E org-Bobl security with number of contracts totaling 2680 and
34, and netianal amcunts totalng 554247937 ard 54,232,754, respectiny),

Thevolumie of activity for the reporting periods for any dervative type that was held during the peried islisted below arnd was as follows based on
an average of the heldings at the end of each fiscal quarter:

Agril 30

2035 2024
Purchased swap opdicn contracts foontracl amaourit) S255.000,000 A0, B0 00
Writter swap opthan corracts {contract amsunt) $151,300,000 449, 700,000
Fubtures contracts {nomber of contracts) ** K] &ip
Forwand currency contracts {contract amount) 519,100,000 534 300,000
OTC mfenest 1ate swap comracts (notonal) S 1,700,000 SER0,00
Centrally cleged intenesd tale Saap contiacts rotional) STABA00,000 51063, 00000
CTE total refturr swap contracts iroticnall 52,500,000 S ATCHE
CTC crecit default contraos inotional) $1 5300000 S35,R00,000
Centrally cleaned credit delault contracts (notiona] 511,600,000 58,0000

** For the reparting period, averape of the Futues holdings at notioralvales was 58,900,000 (0124: 513 500,000,

Aggregate Value at risk

The Value al Risk {VaR) risk measure estimates the maxdmum expected loss in pee-taxation profit as a pescentage of the fund's met assets over a
given holding perod for a specified confidence level. The VaR methodology is a statistically defined, probahbility-based approach that takes into
account market volatilithes as well as risk diversification by recognizing offsetting positions and correlations bBetween products and markets, Risks
can bemeasured consistently across all markels and products, and risk measures can be aggregated to amive at a single risk number. Given the
interdependencies between market varables, the Master Fund also estimates the VaR or threshold loss that is not expected to be exceaded at the
991 percentile confidence level cver a 1-day homzan. The Manager uses a third -party ralti-factor reodel (20004: used a proprietary malli-factor
model} 1o estimate the active sk {also referred to as tracking error) from which VaRt estimates can be analytically deriver. The VaR estimates
presented below are peint-in-dime and vary over lime as a funclion of market and pertfolio composition changes and are répresentative of
activity during the pericd.

Given its reliance on histedcal data, VaR is most efective in estimating risk exposures in markets in which there are no sudden fundamental
changes or sudden shifts in market conditions, An inherent limitation of VaR is that the distribution of past changes in market risk factors may
nat produce accurate predictions of future risk. Different VaR methedelegles and distibutional assumptions could preduce a materially different
VaR Moreover, VaR calcolated for a one-day time horizen does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannct be liquidated or offsat
with hedges within cne day, Changes inVaR between reporting, periods are generally due to changes in levals of expasure, volatilities and/ar
correlations among assel classes, A of April 20, 2024, price to the changein Manager a different VaR methodalagy and distributional assumplions
was used, The change in WaR and total risk of the portfolio compared to Apil 30, 7625 reflects an updated risk model used by the Manager,
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The table belows shows the VaR of the Master Fund for both start and end of the revies pericd,

Partfolio Benchmark® ** Ratia™*
 April 30, 2025 078 nia 0
April 30, 2024 08 nfe nja

" ICE BodA LS, Trowmsery Bill indes

** The Master Furd uses a cash equivalent benchimark, thenefore Vak of the benchmark and Vak ratio are not relevant

The factor risk breakd own for the Master Fund for both start and end of the reviess period is presented inthe table belows. The sk decomipasition
15 based on expected annualized volatility {1 standard deviation}. Active Risk {or Estimated Tracking Error *TE™} measures the predicled stan-
dard deviation of the retem difference between the portfolicand the benchmark using the current positions of each and the risk model's factor
covariance matrix,

Partfalia Benchmark® Ectimated TE
April 30, 2025 Total Risk 497 14 455
April 30, 2024 Total Risk ] 017 G0

" ICE Bofa LS, Treasany Bill Index

{b) Currency risk

Currencynisk is the risk that the fairvalue or future cash lows of a inancial instrurwent will Tuctuate due tochanges in forelgn exchange rates, The
risk arises.on financial instruments that are denominated in a currencoy other than the funclional currency inwhich they are measured, A pordion
of the funds’ assets are held in currencies otier than the base currency with the result that the funds’ Staterments of financial position can be
significantly afected by currency movements.

Non-base currency exposures (excluding the notional impact of forward currency cantracts) are detailed in the tables below, Manetary assets
represent livestiments that can beconverted inta menatary erms in avery short pencd of tee, In the tables below, Non-Manetany assels inclode
the fir value of the Master Fund’s portfolio investiments. Monetary assets and liabilities inclede the unrealized appreciation and depreciation of
T84 sale commitments and derivative contracts, Forwarnd curency contracts are entered into as a method of reduding currency risk

Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2025

Assels Non-Monetary Monetary Tatal
Aarstralian Dolar — 2 K3638 52203638
British Pound = 86,700 55,100
Caradian Dollar = 12658 12k
Furg 5267739 165279 54309658
JepaneseYen - 179951 119551
Swriss Frame - 127,118 127,118
§5,267,T20 42,777,305 mm‘

Liabilities Hon-Manetary Monetary Total
Brstraliin Dolar £ 51.008.126 SLO0R 136
British P = 43150 43750
Canadizn Dollar - 3533 A3
Eurc — 3rT1a 3LT1S
JapaneseYen - a3 k]
e Zeiland Doflar - 56505 S655
Konwegian Kione - 104,970 104,570
Swedish Mrona - iy T 10061S
$1,924,986 §1,924,986

Currency Non-Monetary Monetary Tatal
Eurg = 510 S0
5— 5270 $270
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Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2024

Assats Non-Monetary Monatary Tatal
Aurtralian Dallas e 1948871 519459871
Brinsh Pr - 1503 15779
Caradian Dallar - 55,10 5.0
Crech Konina - 243 242
Eurg SEIZELT &4016 B ABEEIY
Hoew Fealend Dollar - A 2454
eoneepian Kione - 195240 18540
St Keoraan Wor - 35043 3542
Swedish Krona - 138 1585 128,186
55,812,617 §3,084,840 $3,807,057

Linbitities Hon-Manetary Maonetary Tatal
Adrstralan Doflar — SIB46TE ST84.6T6
Brasdian Real = 994 T
British Poamnd = L8N T
Canacian ollar - 9926 9,926
Chilaan Peso - 1315 Lars
ChireseYuan (Dnshoare) - 40071 40071
Coloamibian Peso - 241 FaAk]
Euirex = 595,119 595,119
Fungaran Farirt - IB3T2 18372
Incian Rupee — BOTZ BOTZ
Isaeli Sheke H ke Pt ry
Japenese Yen = 116555 116655
Makinysian Riragjt - 1685 L6438
Mexican Peso - Log2a Lo
Kew Zealand Dollar = 11,7159 11.ras
Polish Doty = 007 5007
Singapore Delle - 3347 23347
South african Rand - LROAS 1RO
Swiss Franc - 41038 41034
Thai Baht = 32020 Erdvri]
- $1,759,912 $1,759,912

A April 30, 2024, there are no foreign currency balances.

(e} Interest rate risk

Inberest rte sk is defined as the risk that the firvalee or futuee cash lows of a inancial instrumentwill fuctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The risk arises on financial instruments whose fair value or future cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates. Short-term
seCurities are less sensitive toanterest rate changes than longer-term securities, bul they also usually offer lower vields. A large portian of the
Master Fund's fnancial assats and liabilities are debitinstruiments with Aoating interest rates, which, in the Manager's cpinion, are genarally less
senstive to interest rate changes but may decling invalue if their interest rates do not rise as miech, or asquickly as interest rates in general,
Canwersely, floating rate instruments will not generally increase invalueif interest rates decline. Changes in interest rates will alsc affect the
amount of interest incame the Master Fund eams oo its floating rate investments.

High yield securities risk

The Master Fund investsin fixed income securities rated Baad or lower by Mocdy's or BBB- or lower by SEP {commonly knowm as “junk” or "high
yield” bonds), These securities asre considered speculative and, while generally providing greater income than irvestiment in higher-rated secu-
rities, Invalve greater risk of principal and income Jncluding the possibility of default or bankruptoy of the issuers of such securities) and many
invetve groater valatility of price fespecially dusing periods of econcmic uncertainty cr change) than seourities in the kigher rating categones,
Because yields vary over lime, no specific level of income can ever be assured. Thess lower-rated, high vislding fiwed income securities generally
tend to reflect sconamic changes {and the cutbook foreconamic growth], short-term corporate and industry developments and the market's
perception of their credit quality {especially during times.of adverse publicity) to a greater extent than higher-rated securities which react primarity
to luctuations in the general kevel af interest rates {although these bower rated fixed income securities are also affectad by changos im interest
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rates), i the past, ecencmic downtums or an increase in interest rates have, under certain circurmistances, caused a higher incidence of default by
the issuers of these securities and may do so in the future, especially in the case of highly leveraped issuers.

Payment risk

The issuers of debl securities held by the Master Fund may be able to call a bond or prepay principal due on the securities, particularly during
perods of declining interest rates, The Master Fund may net be abde to reinvest that principal at atiractive rates, reducing income te the Master
Furd, and the Master Fund may lese any premium paid. The Master Fund would alse tose the benefitof falling interest rates on price of the prepaid
band, On theother hand, fsing interest rates may cause prepayments to ooour at slower than expected rates, This effectively lengthens the
maturities of the afected securities, making them more sensitive tointerest rate changes and the Master Fund's net asset value micre volatile.
Securities subject to prepayment risk generally offer less potential for gains when interest rales decline, and may offer greater potential for loss
when interest rates rise.

The tables bebow present theinterest rate profile of the Statements of financial position categorized by maturity dates.

Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2025
Hon-interaest

Lessthan 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years bearing Tatal
Assels
[reposits with broker S — it 33100332 53,100,292
Cash and cash equivalents 10,671,E91 - - 189,721 05912
Zales ofirmvestments awaiting settiement — - - STTATET 511273
Recervable for variation margin on centrally
cleared swap contracts 131, n3 — - — 131,n
Recewable fram Manags - — - 11,750 LTS
Interest and other recehables - - - 2075368 2115358
Financial Assets &t Rairvalue through profit
orloss 5,158,191 60,614,565 137040 13 217588 FEI039,733
Total assets $45,961,085 60,514,565 $137,049,380 $11,387,456 §255,012,495
Liabilities
Payablein bieker 5— — 5- 51338 513E34
Purchases of irmvestments awaiting settlenent - - - 4 15T i A1 057000
Redempticns of units awaiting settiement - - - 156,106 156,106
Payable lorvamation marginon
Tutures cantracts FEFED - - - 2B
Collateralon certain dervative confracts,
atvalue 32010 IBAETE LA 000 - 2.0 R8s
Pirgable for management fees - - - 233068 233068
Payable for custodian and administrative foes - - - ThaM TR
Oither acorued exporses - - - ShG.A61 558,801
Financial Lizbaties o haraae thrcugh profit
o loss 62559094 615,691 8,346, 13 551347 10,135.841
Total liabilities (excleding net assets
attributable to helders of redesmabdle units) 4686,304 5900,365 510,316,789 542,651,478 §54,554,926
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Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2024
Hon-interest

Less than Lyear 1- 5 yaars Over 5 years bearing Total
Assets
e preesins il boker — - S 3190548 53,903,588
Cash and cash equbvalents 5,341,554 = - 137,169 HATRLA
Sales ol irnesiments swailing settiement - - - L7, T4 F 17,714,209
Recewvable for variation margin on
futires contracts 14,334 - - = 1M, 384
Irterestand other recthvables - - - 1,798,546 1,738,655
Financial Assets at fairvalue through profit
or lpss A4 TTRTAT S A38E18 163,705,062 zan JED, TAE 138
Total assets $70,223,085 $50,935 818 $169,705,252 $23,915,073 5314,80%, 735
Liabilities
Piryalileno becker G 5— G 513504 513504
Puarclasos of irvestments awaiting settlement = = = TABES) TS |
Reciemptians of units sapiting sectiement - = - 188,719 189,719
Paypable forvaiation margio en oentizlly
chixane Svap conbincts 25313 - - - 25313
Collzterabon cenmain derpative contracls,
atwalue - 213431 1967537 - 2.380,568
Payablefor management lees = i = 639,703 630,708 |
Payable for costody and adrminisiratie feoes - - - W03 G603
Cithed Becrued expeerses = = - 387,003 382,193
Financial Liabsities atlzir vakie thicugh profic
o loss ShAe0 1353501 BT 167847 H6032.401
Total liabilities (excluding et assets attrib-
utable to halders of redesmable units) 5405,545 §2,367 332 525,324,557 £75,252,255 §103,880,590
Maon-baseinterest rate exposures {eucluding the notional fmpact of interest rate swap contracts) are detailed in the tables above, Interest rate

Swap contracts are entered into as a method of reducing interest rate nisk,
April 30

Interest Income 2025 2024
Cash and cash eguivalents * 4139927 52,198,950
Dabt securities:
At fair value throuph profit oross 12486034 .56 550
Total $14,125,961 511,056,509

* TheMaster Furd had no interest ircome rom imestments in affillated issuess for the periods ending April 30, 2005 and 2524,

(d) Liguidity risk

This s the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty inmeeting chligations assodated with financial liabilities. The main liability of the funds
is the redemption of amy unils that investors wish ta sell, The Master Fund's inancial instroments that include imestments in OTC derfvative
contracts, if any, whach ane not traded in an organized pubslic market, may be illiquid, As.a result, the Master Fund may not be able to promptly
liqueicl ate some of theiriméestments in thesa instruments at an amount cese to their fairvaluein order to meet thelr lquidity requirements or to
respond bo specific events such as detericration in the credit worthiness of any particular issuer,

Tominimize or mitigate the effect of liquidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can either re-pasition the portfolio or adjust the
altocation to obtain a Mgher concentration of mere liquid and viable securties as detailed in the investment cbjective,

Pursuant 1o the funds’ iovestiment poficy, the Manager is Lo monitor anan angoing basis the funds’ iquidity position. Redesmable onits
are redeemed on demand at the holder's option, However, the Manager does not foreses that the contractual maturity disclosed will be
representative of e actual cash sutflows, as kolders af these dnstruments typically retain hem foe e madium o long Lesm,
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The tables below anabyre the funds” assels and labilitiesinte relevant maturity groupings based oo the remaining period al the Statements of

Liquidity Risk April 30, 3025
Greaterthan

Lesstham 1 Month 1-3Months IManths Total
Total fasets 542,175,017 58,182,986 5204,653,452 5255,012,495
Liabilities
Payabile to taoker 13534 = - 13,834
Purchases ol Irvestments awaiting settlement BOza6sL EWE31a - 41 057,000
Redempticns of units swalting settiement 159,106 - - 159,106
Pinsable lorvesiation mengin on hutures contracts 10250 - - 28,250
Eullﬂ:ﬁlnn_czl:taln cervative contracts, atvalue - - A XU HRA ?ﬁﬁﬂ
Payable lor manegement fees 233,068 - - 233064
Payablelor custedian and administrative foes Ta,242 - - TH242
Citfher BECrLiee e 558851 - = 554, 85
Financial Lizbaities a1 fodr visdie throasgh profit o loss 03 a11,0: 9,33.900 10135641
Total Lisbilities 9,100,985 $33,E30,357 $11,614,584 $54,554,926
Liguidity Risk April 30, 2024

Greaterthan

Lesstham 1 Month 1-3Months IManths Total
Total hasets 574,334,306 514,595,048 5225815884 $314,803,238
Liabilities
Pirygalale to eoker 13,50 - - 13,504
Purchases al imastments awaimgsemmnt T3,852 550 = TREILEED
Redempticns of units awaiting settiement pi- Rk | - - 189,719
Paryabsbe forvariation mangin m::r:ﬂuaﬂ:rchzared_snurwpmuacu 53213 - - ZSG.ZI..EH
Collsteral on certain derb@boe contracts, 3value 2350968 7380968
Payable for manzgement lees B, 3 - — 63, 103
Payable for custody and administrative fees 96,039 - - 96,033
Oiher aecrued epermes 793 - = EChAEE
Financial Liabaities ot zir vatwe through proft orlos 116655 435616 A AFT D FiTERE Y
Total Lisbilities 575,564,276 5488,676 $27,808,038 $103,850,990

{e) Credit risk

The funds will b exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom they trade and will also bear the risk of settlersent default. The risk of defaull on
securities traded is considerad minimal as delivery of securities sold is onby made when the broker has received payment. Paymentismade ona
purchase when the securities have been receivad bey the broker. The trade will fadl if either party fails to mest its abligation,

The funds seek Lo mitigate their credit risk by undestaking transactions with broker dealers, banks and regulated exchanges which the Manager
considers of high credit ratings and that it considers to be established. Risks associated with dervative contracts, if any, imvalve the possibility that
the counlerparty lo the contract may default on fts cbligation to perform.
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The fairvalue of collateral that has been accepted by the Master Fund refated to outstanding repurchase agreerments is: 523,458 980 (2024
£35,199, 180,

The Master Fund generally invests in inancial assets which have a oredit rating assigned by well-known rating agendcies.

Percentage of Het Assets
April3o
2025 W4
AAN A 163084 1315%
AR 292 14"?
AlE 456 LT3
BB Baa 13504 a9
BB/Ba 1832 1532
B8 2 a7
OO ATaa ard bilow 29 34
Unrated” 1057 1xad
Cash and net other assets 2305 3356
100000 L00.00%:

* I encled o meniion the crecit quality of the “Unsated " undedying debt secunsties, the Maraper, on the basis of the internal research, peepanes ins own ratings for
thevariows instnmments for which publicly available credit ratings ame not svailabile. The Manager seviews the key Imancial metnics of the tssue and sbuctursl
features of the mstruments it arder to caloulate the implied ratings for each of these insmiments.

Credit qualities are-shown as a percentage of the Master Fund's net assets as of April 30, 2025 and 2024, A bond rated 888 orhigher (A-3 or higher,
far short-term debt} is considened imvestment grade, This chart reflects the highest security rating provided by coe or more of Standard & Poor's,
Moathy's, and Fitch, Ratings and portfolio credit quality will vary over time, Cash and net ather assets, if amy, represent the market valus weights of
cash, desivatives, and skort-term secuities in the pertfolio,

The funds themsehes have nat been rated by anindependent rating agency.

The funds are also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading dervative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokers
and other recenvabile balances. The funds’ masimum sk of loss from coumterparty risk, sither as the protection seller or as the protection biuyer,
is the: fair walue of the dervative contracts. This nsk ismitigated, but not eliminated, by hining a master netling arrangerment between the Master
Fund and the counterparty, Where the Master Fund is a sefler of protection, the maximum potential amount of fulure payments the Master Fund
may be required to make i equal 1o the notional amount of the relevant derivative contract.

The Master Fund is a party to 1504 {intemational Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc) Master Agresments that govern OTC derivative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements that gevern transactions imvebving morigade-backed and
other assal-backed securities that may result in delayed defivery (Mastor Agreemments] with certain counterparties enterad inlo from ime Lo ime,
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties’ general obligations, representations, agreements,
collateral requirerenis, events of default and eardy termination. With respect te cedain countenparties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted 1o the Master Fund is held in a segregated acoount by the funds' oustodian. The Master Fund's collateral is
detivered Lo the cownterparty bry either pledging or transferring collateral to the counterparty. Collateral can be in the form of cash or debt secu
rities issued by the LS. Government or related agencies or olher securities as agread to by the Master Fund and the applicable counterparty.
Collateral requirerents are deterrmined based on the Master Fund's ned pasition with each counterparty, With respect bo (S0 Master Agregments,
termination events applicable to the Master Fusid may ccour upen a decling in the Master Funid's net assets below a specified threshaold over a
certain perod of time, Terminaticn events appdicatde to counterparties may ocour upon a decline in the counterparty’s long term or short-term
credit ratings below a spacified level, (n each case, upon acourrence, the other party may elect to terminate early and cause settfement of all
dervative and foreign exchange contracts cutstanding, inclsding the payment of any besses and costs resulting frorm such early termianation, as
reasonably determined by the temminaling party. Any decision by one ormere of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect eary termination ooutd
irspact the Master Fund’s fulure desivative activity,

Al the close of the reparting pericd, the Master Fund bad anet hiability position of S563 570 [Hi24: $856 696) an open didvalive contracts subject
to the Master Agreements, Collateral posted by the Master Fund at pericd end for these agreements totaled S835,627 (004 S673,121) and may
ireclude armounts related bo insettled agreements.

The: Master Fund's main credit risk concentration is spread between debit securities and trading derivative products. Less than 109 of the fair
valie of favorable contracts cutstanding ase with a single issuer, with the exception of Covernment Naticnal Morlgage Associaticn, which were
valued at 534,082 552 or 14.45% of fairvalue at the end of the reporting period Aprl 30, 2025 (A24: Uniform Morlgage-Backed Secunties, which
were valued al 551,299 386 or 18.45% of fairvalue, Govemment Naticnal Mortgage Association, which werevalyed at 538,497, 740 or 13885, of fair
value and Bofa Securties, Inc., wihich were valued a1 534,509,000 or 12 449 of fair valuc).

The funds are exposed Lo credit risk associated with the Custedian whe holds a portion of the funds' financial assets and U.S. cash balances. The
Custodian provides cleaning and depositary cperations for the Master Fund's imvestrnent transactions. The Custodian also provides same of the
shesrt-tesm lending facilities 1o the Macter Fursd. The funds wene alse exposed te Custodian sk oncash and cash equivalents that the Custodian

has failed to treat correctly in accordance with procedures agreed to by the funds,
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The maxirmunm exposure o credit risk as of the reporting date can be analyz ed as follows at the end of each reporting pericad:

April 30
Instrument Type 2025 w4
Financial assets and liabilities at tair value through prodit or boss compiised of;
Fiaef income irnestments SHM AR SHASM.ATL
Repurichase agreements F G000 34,500,000
Devative mssis” 3500489 6485584
Cash and cash esubalents LOAROS12 25475123
Salet ofirvestments swaiting settlement LR FRET 17114399
Imterest and other fecehiables 1075368 1,196 646
Dhepaosits with bk 2,100,250 3903548
Taeceimbh?;;:”la;aﬁm margin en futures comtracts - 13::3;:
Recisvable lor variation margin en cenbially cleard swap contracts 131,703 =

* Derivative 2ssets are comprised of foraerd contracts, OTC saep contracts and forwer premium swap option cortracts. The masimuam credit risk en comain
clerivistpeir 255e0% iS miligated 25 & neuly of the Master Furd s enforceable masion netting aangemont (Notes Sand 110

The Master Fund measines eredit nsk and expected credit losses ising peabability of default, expesure at default and loss given defaull,
Management considers both historical anatysis and forward tooking information in detenmining any expected credit loss. Af April 30, 20625 and
April 30, 2024, 8l other recebvables, amounts due from brokers, cash and short-tenn deposits are held with counterparties with a credit rating of
Adfaa or higher and are due to be settled within @ week. Management considers the probability of default to be dose to zerc as the counterpar-
ties have a strong capacity to mest their contractual obligations in the near term As a resull, no loss allowance has been recognised based on
Tamonth expected credit bosses as any such impairment would bewhelly insignificant to the Master Sund.

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit rating issued by Moody's at vear end of Aa (2024: Aa3) S&P Global Inc. had a credit rating
issee] by Moody's ab year end of AS (2024; A3,

Senkor leans are purchased or sold cn awhen-issued or delayed delivery basis and may be setlled a menth or mare after the trade date, wisich
from time to time can delay the actual investment of available cash balances; interest income is accrueed based on the terms of the securities,
Semof loans can be acouined theaigh an agent, by assigrreeat from another holder of the lean, of as a pasticipation interest in another lolders
porticn of the koan, When the Master Fursd imvests ina loan or participation, the funds are subfect 1o the risk that an intermediate participant
betwean the Master Fumd and the borroweerwill fail to meet its obligations to the Master Sund, in additicn to the risk that the borrewer umder the
lexan may default on its obligations.

Puirsiant to the funds’ investiment policy, the Manager is 1o monltcson an angeing basis the funds” credit position

if} Financial derivative instrurments

The Master Fund may employvanious imestment techniques and instruments for imestment purposes or for efficient portfolio management of
their assets for hedging against market moverments, cumency exchange, interest rate risks or othensise, Any such instruments ane used under
the conditicns and within the limits laid down by the Manager, The Master Sund ulilized forwards, futures, opfions and swap contracts during the
repanting period, and any resulting gains o losses were reported in the Statements of comprehensive inccmse (loss),

(g} Fair valuation estimation

The carrying value less impaleent prosision of ather receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flow at the current market interest rate that is
available o the Master Fund for similas financial Instruments,

Amendrent te (FRS T *Fimancial Instruments: Disclosure® requires the Master Fund to classify fair value measwrements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

+ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities {Level 1)

+ Inputs other than guoted prices includad within Level 1 that are observable for assat or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices) {Level 2}

+  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3],

The level In the fairvalue hisrarchy within which the firvalue measurement s categorized in its entirety s determined on the basis of the lowest

lemeed ingoisl that is significant o the fairvalie measurerment i its entirely. For this purpese, the significance of aninpul is assesed against the fair

value measurement in its entirety. If a fairvalue measurement uses ohservable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable

inguts, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement, Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fairvalue measarement inits entirety
requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.
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The determimation of what constitutes "chservable” requiares significant judgrment by the funds. The funds consider observable datato bethat
market data that is readity available, regularty distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietany, and provided by independent
sources that ane actively involved in the relevant market,

Irrvestimnts whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified vathin Level 1, include active listed oqui-
ties, exchange traded derivatives, U5, govemment treasury bills and certainnen-US. sovereign ohligations. The Master Fund does not adjust the
quoled price for these instruements.

Finandial instruments that trade in markets that ase ot considered to be active but arevalued based on quated market prices, dealer quotations
or alternative pricing sources supported by observabla inputs are classified within Leval 2. Thesa include irvestment-grade corporate bands and
certain non-U.S, sovereign cliligations, listed equities and OTC derivatives. As Leved 2 investments incude positions that are ot traded in active
markets and/or are subject Lo transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reftect liguidity and for non-transferability, which are generally
based on avadlable market information,

For financial instruments forwhich there is no active market, the Master fund may use internadly developed modets, which are usually based on
saluation methods and techniques generally recagnized as standard within the industny, Inpats for assets and liakbdlities that are not based on
observable market dala are elassafiod wathin Level 3.

The fallowing table analyzes the fairvalue hieraschy of the Master Fund's financial assets and labilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the
reporing perod Apel 30, 2005,

Fair Value - Financial assets Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Taital
Investment in securities:
Fined Incoeni
Collateral on centain denvative contracts, 3t vakue 1074 000 S316,684 = S EERS
Convenible bonds 2nd notes
Capital goods - 156484 - 156,484
Cansmmer oyclicals - L0450 - L014,150
Comsimng Staphis - TG - TTH,396
Ersrgy - 127411 - 12111
Financials - 43007 - 430,307
Hezalth care - S50, 347 - 980,343
Techralogy - L538.707 - 1.504,707
utilitiesand power - 536,010 - 536,000
Coiparate bonds 2nd noles
Earsic matenials - 5380 455 - 530,455
Capital poods - 2BA947 - 2,549,357
COrMTRncation senaoi - JE2, 194 - 1P AL
Conssmercydicals - 10417239 - 041723
Consamer staphes - 753,584 -3 030508
Enmg_:r = B8 750 - B, 754,150
Financizls = 12,510,506 = 1RANLS0E
Gonmnment - Aoy -~ a8
Health cans = 3131002 = 21310
Technology - LBESBID - LBESGM
Trarspomation = T4 585 - T, 586
Ltilitiesand poawer - BOE2 49 - BOE2048
Foraign govennment and agency bonds and notes - 14,347 076 - 14347076
Mortgase: backed securitics
Agency cellatersised mongage obligations - 28,448 B34 - 2483
Commercial morgagebacked securities = 19476478 - 19476478
Retichintial moitgage backed socmitied = 1B T16 - 1BE2A 716
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Eepior lnans
Feasic materials = BIAD m G164
Capital goods - LhGd T - LG4, Te
Comemanication senices - 13,172 - Ta1r2
Consumer cychcals - Lll4 14t - All14,141
Consumer staples - 55 ] - Ea06A
Energy — £39,711 - f34,711
Fanancials = 241,151 - 241,151
Health cans = L913.629 = 1913629
Techrclogy ~- 2,047,543 - 2341543
Trarsganmation - Tae a3 - TSR
Shart-tenm irvestments - 33,448,065 - 33,445 065
LLS, gevennment and agency mangage obligations - BB AT - I8 437
Totalinvestment in securities 1,974,000 125,461,463 - 127,435,453
Derivatives:
Fonwand Coniracts = 5217588 & 5217568
Fowwardd premiam swap oplion conliacls - LATR93L - 1ATG2L
OTC Total retarm swap cortracts - 6034 - 25004
OTC Criexlin celaul corracts = 3480717 - 3489717
Totad derivatives — 5,604,270 = 5,604,270
Total Financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss 5233,039,733
FairValue - Financial assets Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
Cash equivalents - 510671198 i S10671 191
Centrally cleared interestrate swapcontracs - 53z - 5m303
Centrally cheered cregin delaull contrans - 4497 853 - 497,853
FairValue - Financial iabilities Level 1 Level2 Level3 Tﬁ
Derivatives
Forwand contracts 5= 5541 367 f— 5551367
Fenwand preminm swap option contiacts — 1,407,144 - 1407, 144
CITC it cleelio e contracts - FAGL AR - AED B
Total derivatives — 4,421,339 = 4411339
TRA s commitments - 5714502 - 5714502
Total Financial liakilities ot fair value through profitor loss 310,135,841
FairValue - Financial labilities Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Coanttrally Cheares InTedest e sWap contracts G S4.586,100 G 54386102
Futures contracs 350,618 - - 350,658

Al ather assots and liabilities nolmeasured at fairvalue but for which fair value is disclosed are dassified as Level 2. Befer 1o the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of thevaluation techniques,
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The fallewing table analyzes the fairvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting period Apel 30, 3004,

FairValue - Financial assets Level 1 Lewel2 Level 3 Tatal
Investment in securties:
Fixed Iz
Asset-backed securities L= 51,545,165 e 5L 646, TER
Coflateral o centaln derhvative contracts, af valis 1EA1 000 459,968 - 20058
Conventible bonds &nd notes
Capital goods = 431,183 = 431,18
Consmmer cyclicals - 1,104 616 - 1,104,616
Conssmer staples - TahGL2 - TaEEZ
Energy — 195 352 =r 195,392
Firancials - 113,771 - FEEALH
Health care - orake - S256L
Techrolkogy - 212833 - 2128330
Ltilitiess arnd penwtr = 288,737 = 388,737
Conparate bands and notes
Basic matenials - 4,103,846 - 4,103,846
Capital goods - AB15085 - R30S
COmamunication Services - R0 573 - 204,073
Consumer cychicals — 9491615 = 9491 675
Consumer siaphis = 2,778,743 - 2TT8, 743
Erergy = BT 649 - BT pag
Financials - 5789 365 - 5.7R9.355
Health e2re = 3021443 - ENrE L
Techrelogy - 1,395 567 - 1,395,557
Trarspotation - 3906 - 359 906
Ltiliti=s ard penier - 3463 483 - AAE0483
Foreign gewermment and agency bonds and notes - 17596 562 - 17 a6 RG2
Merigape-backed securities
Agercy collatelized mongage obligations - 26,155,570 - 5,155,570
Commercial mortgage-backed secuities - 10831 078 - 1A51,00
Residential mongage backid secuiities - 2033051 - 23,033,051
Seniar loans
Basic matatials - S0Ra47 - 506,947
Capital goods = La05427 e LA A3T
Communication services - 553530 - 153,530
Consumer cycicals = 318508 - 3,185,085
Consames staples — ZHBAax = TS
Erergy = BAh21E = 45218
Financisls - AFEITL = 450,371
Heszlth care = 135,050 = 1556050
Technclogy - Lraag - 1740549
Transponaion - E=a.997 - BR9,957
Short-term irvesbmenis - A1OTT 48] = ALOTT 441
LLE government and agency mortgage ohligaticns - TET1G,558 - 211055
Totalinvestment in securities 1,891,000 152,522,871 - 154,413,571
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Derivatives:

Ferwarnd contracts i~ 502311 i~ Exrr il
Forward premism swap option contracts - 4517067 - A51T.06T
OTC Crexit cefault contracts - B459,550 - 6480 52
Total derivatives - 11,329,267 - 11,329,267
Total Financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss 4265,743,135
FairValue-Financial assets Levell Level2 Level3 Tuotal
Cash tgjuhalints = 525,341,954 5= 525,341 254
Contrally ceaned interost rate svap contracts - TAHAE - T599.938
Centrally cleaned credit celault contraas - 238,005 - BEE,526
Futures corracts BETaTL - - AL
Fair Value - Financia! liabilities Level 1 Lewel2 Level3 Total
Derivatives:

Fonwand contracts — SI6TA4T i— SIGT.E4T
Fenwand premium swap opiicn contracts - 39T - ke
CITC B 1t S Contiacts - 18,148 - 18,149
OTC Total retarn swap contracts - JMEA5E - 245 R5E
OTC Credif celzult cortracts - 65 A8 - S 484
Totad derivatives = S.550,116 - 9,550,116
THAsale commitments - 16,432 255 - 16482 385
Total Financial labilities at fairvalue through profit os less 526,032,400
FairValue - Financial liabilities Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
Centrally dleared interest rate swap contracts 5— SF054 555 £ ST.054 5
Centrally cleared credin default contracts. - T1363 - 12,363

Al etbver assets and liabilities natmeasured at fairvalue but forwhich fair value is disclosed are dassified as Level 2. Refer 1o the Statersents of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Notes 3and 4 for a description of the valuation lechniques,

Financial Assets at fair value thrcugh profit or loss:

Agpril 30
035 o]
FnamEl__asseis held for trading:
Cash equivalents 510671191 $25,34] 054
Dbt securites 19 595,714 210,355,462
Fepurchase sgreements 22,959 000 34 506,000
LA treasury bills, centficates of deposit and commercial paper (2064 L.5, treasury bills and
commercial paper] 1449065 6568441
Detreatives 5804270 11z82m7
Collaterad on certain derivalive contiacls 2 EALBES 2350568
Total financial assets at fair value through profit orloss [including cash equivalents) 5243,710,924 529,085,092
April 30
s w4
Othar net changes in fairvalise on indnceal assets o fairvalee through poofit or boss
Reafized SMETE 413315495
Changein unrealized 1B 13857053
Tatal gains)[losses) 8,008,570 $541,035
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() Capital risk management

The capital of the funds is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, The amount of net assets attributalle to
haolders of redeemable units can change significantly an a daily basis, as the funds are subject to daily subscriptions and redemplions at the
discreticn of unitholders. The funds’ objective when managing capital is to safeguard the funds’ ability to continue a5 a going comcemn in order
te priwvidie returns forunitholders and maintain a capital base to suppor the development of the investment activities of the Master fund, The
Manages, at its discretion, may scale down a significant redemption that it desms would materially prejudice the management of the funds in
accordance with its investment objectives.

Im arder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the funds' policies are to perfonm the foflowing:

»  Monitor the level of daily subsoriptions and redemipticns relative to the assets it expacts to be able to liquidate within a day and adjust the
amaount of distibutions (f amy) the funds pay 1o redeemalde unitholders,

o Redeem and issue new units in accordance with the constituticnal docurments of the funds, which incloede the ability to restrict redemplions
and require cerain minimum holdings and subscriptions.

The Manager menitors capilal on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemabile unitholders,

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

{a) Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

Thie Manager, an affiliate of the funds, may be antitled 1o an annual fee of up bo 2000 for Class 5 Units and 0.609% for Class | Units payable out
o the assets of the Master Fund. For the fiscal year, at the discretion of the Manager, the management fee was not assessed to Class S Units

associated with the Master Fund. The Manager will receive an annual fee of up to 1L60% for Class | Units and 1.00% for Class M Linits, the Linits
associated with the Feeder Fund, per anmum on the average monthly net assets of each Class of he Feeder Furd.

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay a distributor a fee as agroed between the Manager and such distributor out of the Manager's fee_fary Japanese Agent
Securities Comparny fee shall be paid oul of the Japanese sub-distributor’s fee. At the end of the reporting pericd, the Manager paid the
Disgtributior 52,403 340 [2004: 2. 178207).

Itis currently expected that the total expense ratio {excluding amortized arganizational expense} for Class J Units will not excoed 180% and Class
M Units will notexcead 1.20% per anoum of the average manthly NetAsset Valueof the Feeder Fund, As of Agwil 30, 20025, the Managers reirmbuorsed
the funds 5372472 {2024: 5319 255} for expenses that exceeded the tatal expense ratic above. The Manager resenves the right ta medify Lhis total
axpEnsE ratic at any time.

Trustee fees

Pursiant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, CBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited {the Master Fund Trustee) is entitled to be
paicl cub of the assets of the Master Fund a fee of up 1o 522,500 perannumi subject to an annueal review where the fee may be increased forvanious
reascns such as inflation sathout Unitholder consent as fomg, as the fees are still considered to be at nonmal cormmercial rates.

Such fees will accrue daity and be paid guarteryin arrears, The Master Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable cut-of-pocket
expenises incurred by thie Master fund Trustes in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Fund’s assets.

Pursieant to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, Maplas®s Limited {the Feeder Fund Trustes) is entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a
fese of up bo Q.0F per annum on the average daity Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund up to 360,000 per anauem and subject toa 515,000 minimum
per year, Such fees will acorue daily and be paid quarteriy inamrears. The Feader Fund Trustes shall be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket
exrenses incurred by the Feeder Fund Trustee inrelation to the Feeder Fund out of the Feeder Fund's assats,

{b) Transactions with Non-Related parties

Custodian fees

The Manager shall pay to State Street Sank and Trust Company {the Custedianj, out of the assets.of the Master Fund, a fee ofup to 0,10% per
anmurm on the average manthly Net Asset Value of the Master Fund, accneed daily and pasd monthly in arrears. The Manager shall also pay to
the Custodian, out of the assets of the Feader Fund a fee of up to 0.10% per annum on the average monthly Met Asset Value of the Feader Fund
accrued daily and paid monthily in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable cul-of- pocket expenses payalle to the Custodian cut of each
funid's assats.

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custedian has appeinied State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd. (State Street} (the Sub-Accounting Agent} to act as sub-accounting agent
in relaticn to the funds. For administrative services performied by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
out of the assets of the Master Fund a fecup 1o 567 500 plus 0.0030%: per annum with respect Lo the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund. Additional
menthiy per quote pricing fees will apply, This feewill accnie daily and be paid monthly in arrears, The Manager shall discharge reasonable
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out-of-pocket experses pavable (o the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Master Fund's assets. The Manager shall slso pay the Sub-Accounting
Agent out of the assets of the Feader Fund an administrative fee of approximataly 5,000 per annum plus monthly perquate prcing fees, This fee

is included with the Custody fees on the Staterments of comprehensive incomse (Loss), and will accrue daily and be paid monthly in asrears, The
Manager shall discharge reascnable out-of-pocket expenses payabile to the Sub-Accocunting Agent out of the Feeder Fund’s assets.

The funds may enter into expense offset arrangements with State Street whereby State Streot’s fees are reduced by credits alloeed on cash
balances, For the years ended April 30, 2025 and Apsil 30, 2024, the funds’ expenses were not reduced as a resull of expense offset arrangements,

Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Citibank Europe ple {ihe Transfer Agent}, out of the assets of the funds, a fee based on the volume of transfer agent activity,
subject toa S30RE00 mindmun per annum on the Master Fund and a S75,000 minimum per annum on the Feeder Fund, accroed daily and paid
meanthily in arrears, The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of gach funid’s assats,

Other Expenses

I addition, each respective fund bears all ather expenses incidental to its operations and business, including, amengst others all compliance
costs and the fees of it2 auditcrs and legal advisers; costody charges; interest and commitment fees on loans and debt batances; any income,
withhclding or other taxes; cost of communication with Unitholders and praspective imestors.

Each fund may be required to pay subseriplion and redemplion chasges in conmaclion withimaesstments in clher imvestrment companies, Each
fund may be required to pay brokerage commissions in relation to portfolio transactions.

10. MARKET CONDITIONS

I the pormal cowrse of business, the Master Fund trades finandial instruments and enters into financial transactions where risk of potential loss
euists due to changes inthe market imarket fsk) or ailure of the contracting party to the transaction to perform {credit risk), The Master Fund may
b exprosed 1o additional credit rsk that an institution or other entity with which the Master Fund has unsettled or open transactions will default
as discussed in previous notes.

Putnam Diversified incame Trust Funds {Cayman) 7]

145/262



11. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EDINETOOOO

O000000000000000000(E40158)

Oooooooooooobooooooad

The following tatdes summanize any dervalives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, al the end of the reporting perods,
that are subject to an en‘orceable mastar natting agresment cr smilar agreement. For securilies lending transactions or borowing iransactions
associated with securities sold shor, if any, see Note 3, For financial reporting punposes, the Master Fund diees not offset financial assets and

fimancial lEabilities that are subject Lo the master netting agreements in the Staterments af financal pesiticn,

April 30, 2025
hssets:
[ Crrrtialby cligred aitenes fate féadpn contracis
OTC Tl retuen Swap con liaas™
OTC Crahin efaull comtracts - protection solg™
| @IC Credit cefault contracts - protecton piwchased®®
. Eq-nrmlh.-rle-mmc.rec|.r:!rdz.|ltml:m|::=."
F.ri;,lr.r;-g contracts?
Fonward cumenoy contracts
Foraard premicin Swap opbion coniracts’
. Fheu:n.n-:h.!:sea.gmenw'ls"
| Tatal Assets
| Liabilities:
. Cortrally clésned intenest rale sedp contrac s
OTC Tored retiem Swap contiaos™
| OTE Credit cefault contraces - protecticn sobd*
OTC Credit delaull contracts - protection puschased®®
Cerralby clegrnsd cradil dolzalt contractsh
Fuptuires contracts
Fora@nd CURency oon lracts’
Fooward premium swep option contracts?
| Tatal Liabilities
Total Financial and Berivative Net Assets
Tatal collateral received [pledged]™t
| Het amount

Controfied fnancial instruments eoaked (incling TRA commatmant) ™
Controfipd o colatens receed ncluging TRA commiments)

Unconitniied coffateral recefed
Collztern {plodged] (ncliading TRA cormmitments)**

| Bank of Arerica

15432 |

61,178 .
15,172

5181,782
176,564}
${134,757)

HaLB11)

s. -

5 |
5 B -
G134, 157)

17468 |

517,469

5.|!2?,':.I5&'| .

P

B

i

5626501

4T2m12 |

12076 |

g

i

sl |

£
b
82

5 |
2358950
&

BMP Paribas

301,59

§300,899

K306
§329,505
$(27,307)

o
$(27,907)
s._
5..
o

*Excludes prenmurs, il 2y, incleced in Financial assetsand for Financial Bebilts 2t Bae vabae thicugh prolit o loss on the Statements ol inzecial positon,

**Included in Financial assets and for Financial Rabilities at fairvalue through profit or foss on the Statements of financial pesition,
T Aciditionsd collaters] may De reguined frem centain brokers Dased on individual sgreements.

*Covered byrmaster nalting agreement (Note BL

*arry oven-Collatorabization aliotal Grancid and dervateae neg assers isnol shown, Collaioral msincluderamou nis el 20ec 10 unSe i Jpnperis.

Iincludes coment day's variation masgin cnly as reported on the Statements of financial position, which is rot collateralized. Collateral pledged for initiad margin
o futuees contracts, wisch 15 ol ncluded in Chi (Eide abowe, fmomnteg to 5307 020,
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2 3
-
- ¥ f 3 : 5 3 H
2 25 § z B3 &f = F
] i g £: g £3 I .
3 52 § E ¥ -.E %; =E =3
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
3% 39K 77
14l
17 25T 6,503
50,599 146,758 37,399
- 51,473,961 550,599 5117654 52,757 51,153,281 5741 147,122 537,399
G164 2563 30673
T 1178 21013 PAATE
53427 T 206625 14,583
5123449 5518424 5176,575 513,778 521,013 5591047 5285,302 530,873 514,598
51123 .448) 555,537 5{125,976) 5103916 $118,256) 4562234 S1284,521) 5116245 522,801
£(110,800] 5055 537 [112,965) 5103,916 §— £562,234 %{284,521) $116,249 22 801
5[12,649) 5— 5(13,011) — 5(18,256) — — §— —
5 5 5 B 5 5 5 5141363 532,010
£ A5G, E SEa3,000 5 SR80} 5 5
& = = & [ 5
5110800 5 117 965 & 5 S{362 310 2 3
Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) W

147/262



Morgan Stanley &
Co, LLC

TITITITIT

International PLC

Margan
Stanley & Co,
NatWst
Markets PLC

M124

196 551

1A
50

3327,514 350

K B
585,044
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State Strest Rank
and Trust Co,
Toronto-Dominicn
Bark

BS
Walls Fargo Bank,
WA
WestPac Banking
Corp.

Total
5 5 5 £ ChIR5a]
e
1 BSASTS
Ly 5
A3 R
5= 5404 5332 562 G -
Ta812
B, TE
F20T6
Pl g
113,109 E5560 343 (FoE] 251,367
150 566 1,407,144
5113,108 586,660 5155509 G 5683 53,300,253
§123,100 5{86,256) §177,253 5= 5(683) 524,285,344
§(121,780) — 5177253 5— —
§(1,329) $(86,256) $— §— 5(633)
& 5 5 433 5
[ SO0 o
z [ 5 5
121, TR g & £ &
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gankof America
| Boinsecuritios,

Barclays Bank PLC
:-ln-;[dnrlm'
broker)

April 30, 2024 2 -
[ OTC i iest rste S coitraces"® [ b [ & | & 5
Canmtrally clearid iFtorest (a0 suap conracts ' ' 1089236

OTC Teotad et Swap contracts™
. OTC Credit default contracts - protection sold™ . = | — | — | =
G1I:I:r|?c:|lcﬂra;.1ltmmac1.=.-;.n:-tn-:ml*p.lrd'asec*.' . — — - -
.-CEFIIH|NE|I?<'II.L-'GICIF.'!.'I|l:ll?.1i.‘\.l|t.<:m"tl-il:l:t5" . — | — - —

Futures contracis® - - - -
Forward curmency contracts® . 34,193 . 5531 | = -
| Forward premim swap option comracts! . Th 240 . 9 | iy | = |
| Rrprifchag sgroenwes”* . | | 34,508,000
Tatal Assets §T80.433 55628 51088236  $34,509,000
Liabilities: ' ' |
[ or1c Ir!l-r.'rn.ﬁtm;lzmapl:n.r'lmcls" . = — | - — |
Cortralby cleanmd amterest mbe sdap confracts [ [ 1 AT eaT
(3 [ Tc!.’:lEl"{mrl.wllrcnnm'ls" [ | |
OTC Credit cefauli contracts - proteckion sold™ . F2714 .
' clittreci!rsfaunccntracls-;untet!licnmrd'aw:" ' = = | =1 -
. Centrally cleared oredil default contracts' . 1 - BE252 |
Furuires contracis® [ [
Foanaeard cuimency oon lracls’ ' — 12229 - -
Fonsard premicmswag opion coniracts’ . 97 540 . 8574 . -
| TotalLisbilities | ssam4 §99.803  SL341449 5—
' Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets | 518519 §(84175)  $(253713) 534,509,000
| Total collateral received (pledged]*1 L stesaT = | §— 534,509,000
Het amaunt ' 5181982 $134,175) §{253,213) §—
Controfied Hngncin! marwmaints rocenegl (including THA Comnpumentss ™ [ 5?!;'..5.61' . 5 % 5
[ ﬁrv::.-’.'wnr'.h-|15'.':.'&-1':?\.'rna-f\-!-:.l'{l'.(l'lui.‘rx__.' TRA comamimonts) = [ 5 [ 5 & 5
| ncontrotied coloteral recetved. ' ' 5 | = | s=imee |
| cottenal iptedged) finchufing TEA cammitmenty ™ ' T | 5 | & | s[ma 104

* Excludes peemniuims, i ary, Incladed In Firencizl asses andfor Fananciel sbilites at fairvalue through profit or bess on the Staternerts of financial posation,
* Inchuded in Firanciz assets.ang o Finarcial lizbilities 2t fairvalue through profit o loss e the Statements of finardial position,
T Aclcditiarel rnll.-.l,q'l.elnm:flv' pesgunred lndam cortain Brokers based on mdmcugl Spreemenis.
*Convered by master netting agreement [Note 8l
= hny over-coll#eraliation of total nancial and dervatiee petassets is nol shown, Coltatera] may inclsde amounts relsted to unsettied agreements.
Fircluges current day's varation margm only a3 reported on the Statements of firancial position, which ks rot collateralized. Collateral pledged forinita
mergin o futiwes contracks, which & not inchinded in the table above, amoumted to 3457 342

Putnam Diversified incame Trust Funds {Cayman) £
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JPMorgan Chase

Credit Suissa
International
Deutsche Bank AG
Galdman Sachs
HSBC Bank

USA, Hational
Bank M.A

Citibank, N.A
Citigroup Global
Markets, Inc.
JPMorgan
Securities LLC

Association

5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
L1680 FA69T2 149493 ART503
£ 304
e A6 T 4,753
5115 FIDEIT 2B, T06
STE211S 51,001,650 5845,972 2827 5174457 35,7107 52,256,456 599,887
18,149
1 545957 L0733 | GELAT] B0 T
0339 1,440
437078 220753 152 T3k 258,500
£432.0728 £1.546,052 407 231 220,753 L373 ATE 1,440 1,276 569 £830,729
5349,191 5[545.272) 5449, T41 5{7,926) 5[194,019) 532,267 5979,TET 5161,158
5283331 5451,333) $420,000 — $(199,019) 5— 5978,000 5161,158
565,850 5193,939) 59,141 HT.926) 5= 32,267 51,787 5=
212333 & 5 5 5 5 5
160000 5 SANI 000 5 5 5 TR0 EXEC T
4 8- & 5 5 5 5 5
5 551,313 5 5 S HSR 5 5 5
Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Canyman) 3T
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Merrill Lynch
International

Mizuho Capital
Toronto-Dominicn
Bank

UBS AG

WestPac Banking
Corp.

Markets LLE
International PLC

State Street Bank
and Trust Co.

Margan
Stanley & Co.
NatWeast
Markiats PLE

Total
5 & 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
JBE I3
156,754 A4 357169
{334
HEAT 756G Ao IT e 20 2,900 231
1,106 18458 A 30504
5156,758 51,706 SE50,588 527,566 581,911 4442 5313,313 52,500
18,149
T4
248650 MERSH
13,381 66,525 3. 167,493
66452
S &55 GAST 167847
12410 113584 13363 199 000 309,074
533,381 $12,010 564,581 S b 513,721 SR0EA3T f— 4T9T3,5T4
5123377 (10,304 §86, 20T 27,566 §81,911 $70,721 §116,886 §2,900 $35,139,327
5123377 5— 533,714 5— 581,911 §— 5100,000 §—
5= $10,304) #5493 527,566 - 10,721 516,586 32,900
Rk 5 5 5 sl 5 5 5 SAGE IS
4 5 53714 5 5 5 5 100U 5 SLA2a.T14
L 5 5- 5 5 5 5 5 S35, 164, 18
5 % 5 L 5 5 5 5 S[1.06] 355
Putnam Diversified inoome Trust Funds {Cayrman] ]
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12. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial staternentswere apgroved by the Trustees o Juby 23, 2075,

13. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

Effective May 19, 2025, the funds changed their Custodian from State Street Bank and Trust Company to J,P, Morgan Chase Bank NA, The
Sub-hceounting Agent alsochanged fromm State Street Cayrran Trust Corpany, LLd. to Franklin Templetan investor Serdces, LLC, AL the same
time, the funds’ Transfer Agent transitioned from Citibank Eurape ple to Virtus Partners Fund Sendces Luisembourg Sarl

Putnam Diversified incame Trust Funds {Cayman) 3
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2025
201,024 29,534
435 64
200,589 29,471
10,505,812
24,599,149
5.63 827
5.75 845
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L-5326 17

10

15

21

10

154/262



2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

12
12
12
12
12
12

54,163,798
54,163,798
54,163,798
78,008,919
78,008,919
78,008,919
78,008,919
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80
80
80
115
115
115
115
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2025

2,547.6

67

98,786.3

92

104,323.6

34

110,214.0

117.8

59.1

63.4

295.5

62.6

13

2,861.6

106.3

1,153.1

11

239.9

11

971.9
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10,535.4

14 11,813.8
11 23,381.1
82.1

283 367,615.1
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2024 2023 30

328

23 103

23 25 193

2025 29
146.92
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2024 30

2024 30
240,920 35,395,966
124,813 18,337,526
23,105 3,394,587 51,235 7,527,446
39,106 5,745,454
10,549 1,549,859
466,623 68,556,251
111,944 16,446,812
117,746 17,299,242
12,461 1,830,770
54,925 8,069,581
297,076 43,646,406

1,000

78,245 11,495,755
91,302 13,414,090
169,547 24,909,845
466,623 68,556,251
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2024 30

1,589,353 233,507,743
88,606 13,017,994
1,677,959 246,525,736
220,772 32,435,822
290,098 42,621,198
263,717 38,745,302
255,966 37,606,525
48,570 7,135,904
148,297 21,787,795
1,227,420 180,332,546
450,539 66,193,190
19,674 2,890,504
470,213 69,083,694
108,819 15,987,687
361,394 53,096,006
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2024 30
2023 10 1,000 78,245 66,908 145,153
361,394 361,394
(337,000) (337,000)
2024 30 1,000 78,245 91,302 169,547
2024 30
2023 10 1,000 11,495,755 9,830,123 21,325,879
53,096,006 53,096,006
(49,512,040) (49,512,040)
2024 30 1,000 11,495,755 13,414,090 24,909,845
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2024 30
361,394 53,096,006
(1,573) (231,105)
(5,340) (784,553)
561 82,422
(21,425) (3,147,761)
5,611 824,368
41,142 6,044,583
23,837 3,502,132
290 42,607
(66,200) (9,726,104)
338,297 49,702,595
(340) (49,953)
154 22,626
(186) (27,327)
(337,000) (49,512,040)
(337,000) (49,512,040)
1,111 163,228
239,809 35,232,738
240,920 35,395,966
180,112 26,462,055
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2024 30

FAI

FAI

FAI Franklin
Advisory Services, LLC Random Forest Capital, LLC Franklin SystematiQ Advisers, LLC Franklin
Digital Lending GP, LLC Franklin Venture Partners, LLC Franklin Venture Partners (Talos
Cayman) GP, LLC Franklin Advisers GP, LLC Franklin Holdings, LLC Franklin Templeton
Blockchain GP, LLC

2024 11 12

FAI FAI
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE VIE
VIE VIE
163/262
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VIE

VIE

NAV
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VIE

AUM

VIE
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NAV

2024 30
21.6
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20

NAV

50

236
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AUM
AUM

AUM

AUM
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1,175,083 1,175,083
3,875 3,875
861 861
385,838 88,606 474,444
23,696 23,696
1,589,353 88,606 1,677,959
2024 30
23,105
12,049
16,081
51,235
2024 30
12,441 10,289 375 23,105
12,441 10,289 375 23,105
3 16,081 16,081
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2024

2024

30

30

2027

2034
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99,670
14,489

(4,698)
(642)

108,819

31,545
5,531
5,950
1,299

731

45,056
(5,950)

39,106

6.0



2024

2024

100

30

30

2020

401

2024

50
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26,406

121

3,613
(3.,802)

26,338

5.5

3.0

85
6.4



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AIP
2002 USIP
1998 ESIP

2017 EIP

32.6 ESIP
0.5
AIP

USIP EIP
USIP EIP 165.0
23.0 2024 30 usip EIP 25.6 13.9

2023 30 1,386,942 24.37

1,322,896 24.11

(1,425,564) 29.55

(7,836) 24.87

1,226,845 23.95

2024 30 2,503,283 26.49
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2024 30
41.9 1.9

30.6

1,179,819 385,838
88,606
5,062

1,179,819 479,506

221,732
254,591
6,767
99,475
26,423
132,520

741,508

117,256
54,925

18,992
130,936

111,944

FAI 500
0.228
FAI 2025 30
2024 30 0.6
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fir thowsamnds, excepd share dala)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Investments (including 523,105 at fair value)
Deterred taxes

Other

Total Assets .

Liabilities

Due fo affiliated entifies, ne
Compensation and benefits

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Income taxes

Todal liabilifies

Commitments and Contingencies (Note T)

Stockholder's Equity

Common stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding

Additional paid in capital
Retained earnings
Total stockholder's equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3

1741262

5 240,820
124,813

51,235

39,106

10,548

$ 466,623

B 111,944
117,746

12,461

54 925

287,076

78,245
21,302
168,547

5 466,623
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024

fir thousands)

Operating Revenues

Investment management fees B 1,588,353

Service tees from affiliated enfities &8 806
Total operating revenues 1,677,859

Operating Expenses

Sales, distribution and marketing 220,772
Compensation and benefits 280,098
Fund-related expenses 263,717
Adverising and promotion 255,866
Information systems and technology 48,570
General, administrative and other 148,267

Total operating expenses 1,227 420
Operating Income . .. R PR e i Lo T LR g 450,539
Investment and other income, net 19,674
Income before taxes 470,213
Taxes on income 108,819
Net Income and Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. .. $ 351i394

See Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024
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{in thousands)
Net income .

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Income from equity method investmenis
Deferred income taxes

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables and other

Decrease in investments, net

Increase in due to affiliated enfiies, net

Increase in accrued compensation and benefits
Increase in accounis payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in income taxes payable to parent

Met cash provided by operating activities

Purchase of investiments
Liquidation of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Dividends 1o parent
Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements.

&

1771262

) 361,384

(1,573)
(5,340)
561

(21,425)
5,611
41,142
23,837
290

(66,200)

338,297

(340)
154

(186)

{337,000)
(337,000)

1.1
239,809

$ 240,920

———— ———

3 180,112
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

Business

Mature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI® and collectively with its subsidiaries, the *Company®) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc, ("Franklin® or the “parent”). FAl is a registered
investiment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company
provides investment management and related services to invesiment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin {"affiliated funds®), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Senvices, LLC, Random Forest Capital, LLC,
Franklin SystematiQ Advisers, LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GF. LLC, Franklin Venture Pariners,
LLC, Franklin Venture Pariners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP, LLC, Franklin
Holdings, LLC, and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investment advisers or
general pardners of affliated funds.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the repored amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reporfed amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual amounis may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 12,
2024, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available 1o be issued.

Consolidation

The consclidated financial statements include the accounis of FAI and its subsidiares in which it
has a confrolling financial interest. The Company has a contralling financial inferest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voling interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a vanable
interest enfity (“VIE"). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

AVIE is an enlity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activities or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
invesiment. The Company’s VIEs are all investment products, and its vadable inlerests consist of ils
invesiment management fees eamed from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the activiies that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation 1o absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Investment
management fees eamed from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed 1o be al markel and commensurate with senvice. The key estimates and assumptions
usad in the analyses include the amount of assets under management ("AURM").

WIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of invesiment products in which
the Company has an equity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure to loss from
these VIEs consisis of equity cwnership inferests of $5.5 million and investment management fee
receivables of $1.0 million.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

While the Company has no confractual obligation to do so, it routinely makes cash investments
when Franklin launches investiment products. The Company also may volumanly elect to provide
invesiment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on ils business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or olher support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year.

Related Parties

Related paries include affliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entiies”). Amounts
due o affliated enfiies, and substantially all of the Company's operating revenues, operating
expenses and recevables are from related parties,

The Company has a master netfing agreement with Franklin and affiliated enfiies. As amounis due
to and from Franklin and affiiated entifies are a determinable amount and the right of offset is
enforceable by law, receivables from and payables to affiliated eniifies are offset and the net
amount is presented as due to affiliates, net.

The Company earms investment managemen fees from affiliated funds and affiliated enfities. The
Company also eams service fee revenues from ils affiliated entifies for corporate services, which
are determined based on the cosis incurred by the Company in performing these services. The
Company incurs expenses pursuant to agreements with affiliated enfities for fund administration,
subadvisory, sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a threelevel fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs 1o those valuation techniques
are observable or unocbservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabiliies measured ai fair value is determined
hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementin its entirety.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites, which may
include published net asset values ("NAVT) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilties in aclive markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilites in markets that are not active; or inputs other than quoted prices that
are ohservable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inpuls that are suppored by litle or no market activity. These inpuls
require significant management judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumptions that marked participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events ocour, such as global market fluctuations, issuer
specific news, economic and geopolifical events, natural disasters, and governmental acfions, A
pricing vendor is engaged fo provide a valuation factor, which represents an estimate as o how
much a specific investment value would have changed between the time that the investments
stopped frading in its local markel and the fime that the fund's NAY was determined. The price
adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation technigues for which the significant assumptions are observable in the market,
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

The Company's invesimenis are primarly recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis. Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are nol measured at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial instiiutions and a nonconsolidated
money markel fund sponsored by Franklin and are camied at cost. Due to the short-term nature and
liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions, limits the amount of
credit exposure with any given financial instifution and conducts ongoing evaluations of the
creditworthiness of the finandal institutions with which i does business. Deposits with financial
insfilutions exceeded Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits by $21.6 million at
September 30, 2024, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from atfiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amourds. Due to the shor-term nature and liguidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value.

Investments in Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of nonconsolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separate accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in earnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAY or estimated using NAV as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounis are determined using quoted
marked prices, or independent third-parly broker or dealer price quotes if quoted market prices are
not available,

Inve=stments in Equity Method Investees

Investments in equity method investees consist of equity investments in entities, incuding
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able 1o exercise significant influence, but not control,
Significant influence is generally considered fo exist when the Company's ownership interest in the
invesies is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investes's
hoard of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, are also considered in detemining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investiments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the eguity method when the Company's
invesiment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are inifially camied at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company's proporlionate share of the entities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.

Other Investments

Other invesimenis consist of equity investments in entifies over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value. The equity
invesiments are measured at cost adjusted for chservable price changes and impairment, if any,
which are recognized in earnings. The fair value of the enfiies is generally estimated using
significarm unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments thal do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarerly basis. The evaluation of equity
invesiments considers qualitative factors, including the financial condiion and specific events
related 1o an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the invesiment is less than its carrying
value, Impaiment of equity securfies is recognized in invesiment and other income, net.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Moncontrolling interests are thind-party investor equity in consolidated subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling inferest holders 1o request setlement.  Nonredeemable noncomtrolling
interest are classified as a component of equity. Net income (loss) atributable 1o third-party
invesiors is reflecled as nel income {loss) attributable to nonredeemable noncontroliing interests in
the statement of income.

Nonredeemable noncontrolling interest of 3236 is induded in additional paid in capital. There was
no net income attributable 1o nonredeemable noncomtrolling imerests during the year.

Revenues

The Company eams revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally invesiment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related 1o the senices are satisfied and
it is probable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not ocour in future periods,
The obligations are satisfied over ime as the services are rendered.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based invesiment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over fime.
Performance-based investment management fees are generally generated when invesiment
products’ performance exceeds fargets established in customer confracts.  These fees are
recognized when the amount S no longer probable of significant reversal and may relate 1o
invesiment management services thatl were provided in prior periods.

AUM is generally based on the fair value of the underlying securities held by invesiment products
and is calculated vsing fair value methods denved primarily from unadjusted quoted market prices,
unadjusted independent third-party broker or dealer price gquotes in active markets, or market prices
or prce guotes adjusied for observable price movements atler the close of the primary market in
accordance with the Company's global valuafion and pricing policy, The fair values of securiies for
which market prices are noi readily available are valued indernally using varous methodologies
which incorporate significant unobservable inputs as appropriale for each secunty type and
represent an insignificant percentage of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company's role
as principal as il controls the delegated services provided to cusiomers,

Bervice fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the services are performed over fime,

Stock-Based Compensation
The fair value of Franklin's slock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on
the market price of fhe underlying shares of Frankliin's common stock and is amortized o

10
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

compensafion expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesfing period, which is generally
three years. Forfeitures are accounted for as they ocour,

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and several combined state income fax
retumns for Franklin.

Under an infercompany 1ax sharing agreement (the “Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes to the Company using the separate refurm method excepl for tax benefits arising from its
tederal and combined stale net operating losses, which are ulilized by Franklin under the
Agreement. As a resull of this exception 1o the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred tax assets related 1o federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheel. Instead, these deferred tax assels are freated as transferred to Franklin. The
Company tracks fhese nel operating loss deferred tax assets, it any, in a separate memorandum
account

Consistent with the separate company method, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for lemporary differences
hetween the 1ax basis of the Company's assels and liabilities and the repored amounts in the
consolidated financial statemenis using the statulory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reporied amount of the asset or iability is expecied fo be recovered or setfled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilties of a change in lax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date, For each tax position taken or expected to
be faken in a fax relum, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the posilion, including
resolution of any related appeals or lifigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likeby of
being realized upon setllement.  Inlerest on fax mallers is recognized in interest expense and
penallies in other operating expenses,

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transaclions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the cumrent exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency fransaction gains and losses are recognized in
eamings.

11
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Revenues
Operating revenues by the customer's geographic area were as follows:
Service fees
Investment from
management affiliated
ftn dhousands) fees entities Total
Eamed from Affiliated Funds
Unifed Stales § 1175083 & — % 1,175.083
Americas Excluding United Siales 3875 — 3,875
Europe and Asia 861 —_ a61
Earned from Affiliated Entilies 385,838 88,606 474,444
Eamed from Third Parlies 23 686 — 23,686
Total $ 1i5'39l353 $ 88,606 $ 1,677,959
A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from cusfomers
domiciled in the United States.
Investments
Investments consisted of the following atl September 30, 2024
{tn dhausands)
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts % 23,105
Other investments
Investments in equity method investees 12,048
Other investments 16,081
Total $ 51,235
Fair Value Measurements
Assets measured at fair value on a recuring basis were as follows at Seplember 30, 2024:
{in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts . 5 12441 § 10289 3% 375 5 23,105
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value. ... $ 12441 $ 10,289 § aTs $ 23,105

12
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September 30, 2024

Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:

Fair Value Carrying Estimated
{tn dhousands) Level Value Fair Value
Equity securities 3 % 16,081 & 16,081

6. Taxes onIncome

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

(i Thatisavd s}

Current expense

Federal % 89 670
State 14,489
Deferred benefit

Federal {4,698)
State (842)

The significant components of defered tax assets at September 30, 2024 were as follows:

{in thausands)
Deterred compensafion and benefits % 31,545
Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 5,53
Foreign tax credit 5 850
Interest on uncertain fax positions 1,289
Other 73
Total deferred lax assels 45,056
Valuation allowance {5,950)
Deferred Tax Assets .. .. G e S R e e o 39,106

At Sepilember 30, 2024 there were 36.0 million of foreign tax credit camy-forwards that expire
between 2027 and 2034, A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred 1ax asset
tor foreign tax credit carmy-forwards due {o the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in fulure years.

The income {ax expense vares from the federal statutory rate pamarily due 1o state income faxes
and permanent differences related to equity.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

13

184/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Franklin Advisers, Inc.
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September 30, 2024
(i Thatusands)
Balance al beginning of yvear b 26 406
Additions for tax postions of prior years 121
Additions for 1ax posiions related 1o the current year 3613
Expiration of statute of limitafions {3,802)
Balance at End of Year ... . .. e B 26,338

*

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in fulure periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefils is
included in income faxes payable 1o parent in the consolidated balance sheetl.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2024 was approximately $5.5 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized fax benefits table above,

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and mulfiple combined state income fax
retumns for Franklin, The Company is subject o examination by the taxing authorifies in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any setflermnents are subject 1o significant
uncerainty, The Company's major fax jurisdictions and the tax years for which the staiutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the Siates of Califomia, Massachusetis, New Jersey,
and New York, City of New York and US federal 2020 fo 2024,

It is reasonably possible that the iotal unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2024 could
decrease by an estimated $3.0 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of
statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and ceriain state tax jurisdictions, and pofential settlements
with sfate tax authorilies.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from time fo fime involved in litigation relating fo claims ansing in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ulimate resolution of any such claims
will not materially affect the Company's business, financial position, results of operaions or liquidity.

8. Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401({k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meel cerain employment requirements. Parficipants may
contribude 1o the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up o 100% of the cash portion
of the paricipant's vear-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Intermal Revenue Code
limitafions, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contfribution rate equal o 85%
of eligibde compensation confribuled by paricipants. The Company's expense related 1o the plan
tor the fiscal was 6.4 million,

14
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2024

o, Stock-Based Compensation

The Company paricipates in Franklin's Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan {the “AIP7), the 2002 Universal Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the "USIP")
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1888 Employee Stock Investment Plan
{the *ESIP") and the Amended and Restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
{the "EIP", and colleclively the "Plans"). The Compensation Commitiee of Franklin's Board of
Direclors determines the terms and condiions of awards under the Plans.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $32.6 million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.5 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year,

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unil awards generally based on the performance of the Company andfor its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP and EIP provide for the issuance of shares of Franklin's common
stock for various stock-related awards 1o officers, directors, and employees. There are 165.0
million shares and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. Al September 30,
2024, 25.6 million shares and 13.9 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the
EIF.

Stock awards entitle holders to the right 1o sell the undedying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards wesl, Sfock unit awards entilte holders 1o receive the underlying shares of
common stock once the awards vest.  Awards vest based on the passage of time or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin inancial performance goals,

Stock and stock unit award activity consisted of time-based awards and was as follows during the
fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Non-vested balance at September 30, 2023 .. ... .. ... ... 1386842 & 24.37
Granted 1,322 896 24.11
Vested {1,425 564) 289.55
Forteited/canceled {7 ,B38) 24 87
Transferred in. ned 1,226 845 23.95
Non-vested Balance at September 30, 2024 : 2,503,283 % 26.49

Total unrecognized compensation cost related 1o nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $41.9
million at Seplember 30, 2024. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.8 years, The tolal fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards
vested during the fiscal year was $30.6 million.

15
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10. Related Party Transactions

The amounts related 1o fransactions with affiliates included in the Company's consdidated

statement of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated

o dhotsands) Entities
Investrnent management fees 3 1179819 § 385,828
Service fees from affiliates — 88,606
Investment Income " 5,062
Total Revenues from Affiliates o . . % 1,179,812 § 479,506
Fund-related expenses b — % 221,732
Adverising and promotion — 254,51
Compensation and benefils — 6,767
Sales, distribution and markefing — 89,475
Information systems and technology — 26,423
General, administrative and other — 132,520
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates . . % — % 741,508
Receivables 3 117,256 % —
Income taxes payable to parent —_ 54,925
Due to affiliated entiies, net is comprised of the following:

Due from affiliated entities —- 18,062
Due to affiliated entiies = 130,936
Due to affiliated entiies, net 111,844

FAl may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of $500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement. Amounts loaned under this agreement eam interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.228% per annum. The agreement expires on June 30, 2025 unless
terminated by mutual written consent of FAl and Franklin, There is currently 50,6 million receivable

under this agreement as of Seplember 30, 2024.

16

187/262



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30

2023 30
239,809 35,232,738
102,677 15,085,305
28,846 4,238,054 55,634 8,173,747
33,766 4,960,901
11,274 1,656,376
443,160 65,109,067
70,802 10,402,230
93,909 13,797,110
12,171 1,788,163
121,125 17,795,685
298,007 43,783,188

1,000

78,009 11,461,082
66,908 9,830,123
144,917 21,291,206
236 34,673
145,153 21,325,879
443,160 65,109,067
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2023 30
1,488,143 218,637,970
27,993 4,112,732
1,516,136 222,750,701
239,222 35,146,496
234,594 34,466,550
240,746 35,370,402
197,781 29,057,985
43,074 6,328,432
124,044 18,224,544
1,079,461 158,594,410
436,675 64,156,291
16,762 2,462,673
453,437 66,618,964
103,308 15,178,011
350,129 51,440,953
82 12,047
350,211 51,453,000
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2023 30

1,000 78,009 166,779 82) 244,706 229 244,935

350,129 350,129 350,129

82 82 82

(450,000) (450,000) (450,000)

7 7

1,000 78,009 66,908 144,917 236 145,153
2023 30

1,000 11,461,082 24,503,171 (12,047) 35,952,206 33,645 35,985,850

51,440,953 51,440,953 51,440,953

12,047 12,047 12,047

(66,114,000) (66,114,000) (66,114,000)

1,028 1,028

1,000 11,461,082 9,830,123 21,291,206 34,673 21,325,879
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2023 30
350,129 51,440,953
(1,553) (228,167)
(161) (23,654)
(336) (49,365)
2,884 423,717
(48,022) (7,055,392)
(5,014) (736,657)
(2,000) (293,840)
92,413 13,577,318
388,340 57,054,913
(3,522) (517,452)
8,033 1,180,208
96 14,104
4,607 676,860
(450,000) (66,114,000)
7 1,028
(449,993) (66,112,972)
(57,046) (8,381,198)
296,855 43,613,937
239,809 35,232,738
12,089 1,776,116



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30
FAI
FAI
FAI Franklin
Advisory Services, LLC FAS Random Forest Capital, LLC Franklin SystematiQ

Advisers, LLC Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC Franklin Venture Partners, LLC Franklin
Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC Franklin Advisers GP, LLC Franklin Holdings, LLC
Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC

2023 11 21

FAI FAI
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE VIE
VIE VIE
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NAV

2023 30
21.2
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AUM

AUM
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1,122,188 1,122,188
5,016 5,016
661 661
339,109 27,993 367,102
21,169 21,169
1,488,143 27,993 1,516,136
2023 30
28,846
10,707
16,081
55,634
2023 30
10,204 18,642 28,846
10,204 18,642 28,846
3 16,081 16,081
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93,882
11,000

(1,152)
(422)
103,308

24,290
5,545
5,705
1,191
2,740

39,471

(5,705)

33,766

5.7

21
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2020
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30
2018
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401
50
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28,936
161
(559)
3,452
(5,584)
26,406

5.0

2019 2023

12 3.2

100
85
5.3

AIP
USIP



0.8
AlIP
USIP
USIP
2023 30 USIP
2022 30
2023 30
2023 30
23.7
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1998 ESIP
2017 EIP
31.7 ESIP
EIP 140.0 23.0
EIP 12.2 14.7
1,518,988 26.06
1,274,819 22.56
(1,385,551) 24.61
(24,100) 23.01
2,786 27.50
1,386,942 24.37
1.5
37.3

1,127,865 339,109
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27,993
12,469

1,127,865 379,571

231,766
233,715
5,744
85,468
27,105
106,032

689,830
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2023

{in thousards, excepl share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents g 239,809
Receivables 102,677
Investments (including $28,846 at fair value) 55634
Deferred taxes 33,766
Other 11,274
Total Assets ........... S e — i . 443,160
Liabilities
Due to affiliated entities, net £ 70,802
Compensation and benefits 93,909
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12,171
Income taxes 121,125
Total liabilities 298,007
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholder's Equity
Comman stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding =—
Additional paid in capital 78,009
Retained eamings 66,908
Accumulated other comprehensive loss —
Total Franklin Advisers, Inc. stockholder's equity 144,917
Nonredeemable noncontrolling interests 236
Total stockholder's equity 145,153
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity R T T AT e AT r T 443,160

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

{in thousands)
Operating Revenues

Investment management fees g 1,488,143
Service fees from affiliated entities 27,993
Total operating revenues 1,516,136
Operating Expenses
Fund-related expenses 239,222
Advertising and promotion 234 594
Compensation and benefits 240,746
Sales, distribution and marketing 197,781
Infarmation systems and technology 43,074
General, administrative and other 124,044
Total operating expenses 1,079,461
Operating Income . : e e P P P ! ] P 436,675
Investment and other income, net 16,762
Income before taxes 453 437
Taxes on income 103,308
Net Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. ...... . ... ... ... ........ s 350,129
Other Comprehensive Income . : : T : B2
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. . . 350,211

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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{in thousands)

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Deferred income taxes

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables and other

Decrease in investments, net

Decrease in due to affiliated entities, net

Decrease in accrued compensation and benefits
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in income taxes payable to parent

Net cash provided by operating activities

Furchase of investments
Liguidation of investments
Disposails of property and equipment, net

Net cash provided by investing activities .. ... .. .. e

Dividends to parent
Moncontrolling interests

MNet cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Endof Year ... .............. R

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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£ 350,129

(1,553)
{161)

(336)
2,884
(48,022)
(5,014)
(2,000)
892,413

388,340

(3,522)
8,033
96

....... 4,607

(450,000)
7

(449,993)

(57,0486)
236,855

N | 239,809

¥ 12,089
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

Business

Nature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the "Company”) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. (*Franklin® or the "parent"). FAl is a registered
investment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, The Company
provides investment management and related services to investment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin (“affiliated funds"), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Services, LLC (*FAS"), Random Forest
Capital, LLC, Franklin SystematiQ Advisers, LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC, Franklin
Venture Partners, LLC, Frankiin Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP,
LLC, Franklin Holdings, LLC and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investment
advisers or general partners of affiliated funds.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual amounts may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 21,
2023, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available to be issued.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FAl and its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling financial interest. The Company has a controlling financial interest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voting interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity ("VIE"). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

AVIE is an entity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activities or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
investment. The Company's VIEs are all investment products, and its variable interests consist of its
investment management fees eamed from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Investment
management fees earned from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed to be at market and commensurate with service, The key estimates and assumptions
used in the analyses include the amount of assets under management (“AUM").

VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of investment products in which
the Company has an equity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure to loss from
these VIEs consists of equity ownership interests of $3.7 million and investment management fee
receivables of $0.2 million.
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While the Company has no contractual obligation to do so, it routinely makes cash investments
when Franklin launches investment products. The Company also may voluntarily elect to provide
investrment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on its business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or other support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year,

Related Parties

Related parties include affiliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entities®). Amounts
due to and from affiliated entities, and substantially all of the Company's operaling revenues,
operating expenses and receivables are from related parties.

The Company has a master netting agreement with Franklin and affiliated entities. As amounts due
to and from Franklin and affiliated entities are a determinable amount and the right of offset is
enforceable by law, receivables from and payables to affiliated entities are offset and the net
amount is presented as due to affiliates, net,

The Company earns investment management fees from affiliated funds and affiliated entities. The
Company also earns service fee revenues from its affiliated entities for corporate services, which
are determined based on the costs incurred by the Company in performing these services. These
revenues are recognized when earned.

The Company incurs expenses from its affiliated entities for fund administration, sub-advisory,
sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services. Sub-advisory and fund
administration expenses are determined based on a percentage of AUM. Sales, distrbution and
marketing expenses are determined based on the expenses incurred by the affiliated entities in
providing the services to the Company. All other expenses are allocated in accordance with relevant
agreements based on estimates and assumptions that are periodically evaluated and adjusted by
management.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to wvaluation
technigues used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation technigues
are observable or uncbservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which may
include published net asset values ("NAV™) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than guoted prices that
are ocbservable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Uncbservable inputs that are supported by litle or no market activity. These inputs
require significant managemeant judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumplions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events occur, such as significant price changes in proxies
traded in relevant markets after the close of corresponding markets, trade halts or suspensions, or
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unscheduled market closures. These proxies consist of correlated country-specific exchange-traded
securities, such as futures, American Depositary Receipts indices or exchange-traded funds. The
price adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation technigues for which the significant assumptions are observable in the market.

A majority of the Company’s investments is recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis. Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial institutions and nonconsolidated
money market funds sponsored by Franklin and are carried at cost. Due to the short-term nature
and liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions in various countrigs,
limits the amount of credit exposure with any given financial institution and conducts ongoing
evaluations of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which it does business.
Deposits with financial institutions exceeded Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits
by $21.2 million at September 30, 2023, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from affiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amounts. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value,

Investments
Investments consist of investments in sponsored funds and separate accounts, investments in
equity method investees and other equity and debt investments.

Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of nonconsolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separate accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in eamnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAV or estimated using NAV as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounts are determined using gquoted
market prices, or independent third-party broker or dealer price guotes if quoted market prices are
not available.

Investments in Equity Method Investees

Investrments in equity method investees consist of equity investments in entities, including
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able to exercise significant influence, but not control.
Significant influence is generally considered to exist when the Company’s ownership interest in the
investee is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee's
board of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, also are considered in determining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the equity method when the Company's
investrment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially carried at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company's proportionate share of the entities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.
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Other Investments

Other investments consist of equity investments in entities over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value, and time deposits
with maturities greater than three months from the date of purchase. The equity investments are
measured at cost adjusted for observable price changes and impairment, if any, which are
recognized in eamings. The fair value of the entities is generally estimated using significant
unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach. The time deposits are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature and liquidity.

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. The evaluation of equity
investments considers qualitative factors, including the financial condition and specific events
related to an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying
value, Impairment of equity securities is recognized in earnings.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Naoneontrolling interests are third-party investor equity in consolidated subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling interest holders to request settlierment.  Nonredeemable noncontrolling
interest are classified as a component of equity. Net income {loss) attributable to third-pary
investors is reflected as net income (loss) attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests in
the statement of income.

Revenues

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally investment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related to the services are satisfied and
it is praobable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not accur in future periods.
The obligations are satisfied over time as the services are rendered. Mulliple services included in
customer contracts are accounted for separately when the obligations are determined to be distinct.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based investment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over time.
Performance-based investment management fees are generally generated when investment
products' performance exceeds targets established in customer contracts, These fees are
recognized when the amount is no longer probable of significant reversal and may relate to
investment management services that were provided in prior periods.

AUM is generally based on the fair value of the underlying securities held by investment products
and is calculated using fair value methods derived primarily from unadjusted quoted market prices,
unadjusted independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes in active markets, or market prices
or price quotes adjusted for observable price movements after the close of the primary market in
accordance with the Company's global valuation and pricing policy. The fair values of securities for
which market prices are not readily available are valued internally using various methodologies
which incorporate significant unobservable inputs as appropriate for each security type and
represent an insignificant percentage of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company’s rale
as principal as it contrals the delegated services provided to customers.
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Service fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the services are performed over time.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of Franklin's stock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on
the market price of the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock and is amortized to
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesting period, which is generally
three years. Expense relaling to awards subject to performance conditions is recognized if it is
probable that the conditions will be achieved. The probability of achievement is assessed on a
quarterly basis. Forfeitures are accounted for as they ocour.

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated .S, federal and several combined state income tax
returns for Franklin.

Under an intercompany tax sharing agreement (the "Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes to the Company using the separate return method except for tax benefits arising from its
federal and combined state net operating losses, which are utilized by Franklin under the
Agreement. As a result of this exception to the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred tax assets related to federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheet, Instead, these deferred tax assets are treated as transferred to Franklin, The
Company tracks these net operating loss deferred tax assels, if any, in a separate memorandum
account.

Consistent with the separate company methad, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for temporary differences
between the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reported amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date. For each tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement. Interest on tax matters is recognized in interest expense and
penalties in other operating expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the current exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in
earnings.

11
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3.

Revenues

Operating revenues by the customer’s geographic area were as follows:

Service fees
Investment from
management affiliated

{in thousands) fees entities Total
Eamed from Affiliated Funds

United States 1,122,188 —_ 1,122,188

Americas Excluding United States 5016 —_ 5016

Europe and Asia — 661
Earned from Affiliated Entities 339,109 27,993 367,102
Earned from Third Parties 21,169 — 21,169

Total . ..

1,488,143

’ 488, A 1,516,136

27,993

A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from customers

domiciled in the United States.
Investments

Investments consisted of the following at September 30, 2023;

(in thousands)
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts

Other investments
Investments in equity method investees
Other investments

Total

Fair Value Measurements

$ 28,846
10,707
16,081
$ 55,634

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows at September 30, 2023:

fir thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investrments, at fair value

Sponsored funds and separate accounts . % 10,204 % 18642 % — § 28,846
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value ... $ wizm $ 1Eiﬁ42 ] — % EBisdﬁ

12
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Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:

Fair Value Carrying Estimated
{in thousands) Level Value Fair Value
3 8 16,081 § 16,081

Equity securities

6. Taxes on Income

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

{in thousands)
Current expense

Federal ;] 93,882

State 11,000

Deferred benefit

Federal (1,152)
State (422)
Total ..o il G e T D T R D D i ey 5 103,308

The: significant components of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2023 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Deferred compensation and benefits % 24,290
Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 5,545
Fareign tax credit 5,705
Interest on uncertain tax positions 1,191
Other 2.740
Total deferred tax assels 39,471
Valuation allowance (5,705)
Deferred Tax Assets ................... e ER : . % 33,766

At September 30, 2023 there were $5.7 million of foreign tax credit carry-forwards that expire
between 2027 and 2033, A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax asset
for foreign tax credit carry-forwards due to the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in future years.
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The tax expense differs from the federal statutory rate of 21% due to state taxes and other
permanent differences.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

(i thousards)

Balance at beginning of year 3 28,936
Additions for tax positions of prior years 161
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (559)
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 3,452
Expiration of statute of limitations (5,584)
Balance at Bt of YBAE . .. ..y vin i s s s s v s na e s s s i e 9 26,406

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in future periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefils is
included in income taxes payable to parant in the consolidated balance sheet.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2023 was approximately $5.0 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized tax benefits table above.

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and multiple combined state income tax
returns for Franklin. The Company is subject to examination by the taxing authorities in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any settlements are subject to significant
uncertainty. The Company's major tax jurisdictions and the tax years for which the statutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the State of New York 2018 to 2023, the States of
California and Massachusetts 2020 to 2023, and the States of Minnesota and New Jersey and U.S,
federal 2019 to 2023.

It is reasonably possible that the total unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2023 could
decrease by an estimated $3.2 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of

statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and potential settiements
with state tax authonties.
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F & Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of any such claims
will not materially affect the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401{k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meet certain employment requirements. Participants may
contribute to the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up to 100% of the cash portion
of the participant's year-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution rate equal to 85%
of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company's expense related to the plan
for the fiscal was $5.3 million,

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company participates in Franklins Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan (the "AIP"), the 2002 Universal Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “USIP7}
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Investment Plan
(the “ESIP™) and the Amended and Restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "EIP", and collectively the "Plans"). The Compensation Committee of Franklin's Board of
Directors determines the terms and conditions of awards under the Plans.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $31.7million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.8 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year.

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unit awards generally based on the performance of the Company and/or its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP provides for the issuance of shares of Franklin's commaon stock for
various stock-related awards to officers, directors, and employees. There are 140.0 million shares
and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. At September 30, 2023, 12.2
million shares and 14,7 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the EIP

Stock awards entile holders to the right to sell the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards vest. Stock unit awards entitle holders to receive the underlying shares of

common stock once the awards vest. Awards vest based on the passage of time or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin financial performance goals.
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Stock and stock unit award activity consisted of time-based awards and was as follows during the

fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Mon-vested balance at September 30, 2022 .. ... . . 1518988 § 26.08
Granted 1,274,819 22 56
Vested (1,385,551) 24.61
Forfeited/canceled (24 ,100) 230
Transferred in, net 2 786 27.50
Mon-vested Balance at September 30, 2023 ; o 1,386,942 % 24.37

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $23.7
million at Septernber 30, 2023. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.5 years. The total fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards

vested during the fiscal year was $37.3 million.
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10. Related Party Transactions

The amounts related to transactions with affiliates included in the Company's consolidated
statement of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated Affiliated
{in thousands) Funds Entities
Investment management fees % 1,127,865 % 339,109
Service fees from affiiates — 27,993
Inyestment Income —_ 12,469
Total Revenues from Affiliates .. ....................... § 1,127,865 § 379,571
Fund-related expenseas — 231,766
Advertising and promaotion — 233,715
Compensation and benefits — 5,744
Sales, distribution and marketing 5 — % B85 468
Infarmation systems and technalogy — 27,105
General, administrative and other — 106,032
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates ... ............. . & — 5 689,830
Receivables 3 96,652 % —_—
Income taxes payable to parent C- 121125
Due to affiliated entilies, net is comprised of the following:
Due from affiiated entities C- 36,372
Due to affiiated entities = 107,174
70,802

FAl may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of $500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement, Amounts loaned under this agreement earn interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.113% per annum. The agreement expires on June 30, 2024 unless
terminated by mutual written consent of FAl and Franklin, There are no amounts receivable under
this agreement as of September 30, 2023.

11. Subsequent Events

On Movember 17, 2023, the Company declared a dividend of $37.0 million,
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Report of independent auditors

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying combined financia statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30, 2025
and 2024, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (10ss), of changes in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred
to as the "combined financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying combined financial statements present fairly, in al materia respects, the financia
position of the Fund as of April 30, 2025 and 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of
the combined financial statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the combined financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of combined
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the combined financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as
a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the combined financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the combined financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the combined financia statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Fund' s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
Manager's Report, but does not include the combined financial statements and our auditors report thereon. Our opinion
on the combined financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the combined financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the combined financial statements, or
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 23, 2025
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024, and the related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2024, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for theConsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantia doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of theConsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Francisco, California
November 12, 2024
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inc.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2023, and the related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Francisco, Cdlifornia
November 21, 2023
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